Lewisham Council
Members
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held
on Wednesday, 23 November 2016.

Barry Quirk, Chief Executive
November 15 2016

Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye
Councillor Abdeslam Amrani
Councillor Chris Barnham
Councillor Paul Bell
Councillor Peter Bernards
Councillor Chris Best
Councillor Kevin Bonavia
Councillor Andre Bourne
Councillor David Britton
Councillor Bill Brown
Mayor Sir Steve Bullock
Councillor Suzannah Clarke
Councillor John Coughlin
Councillor Liam Curran
Councillor Janet Daby
Councillor Brenda Dacres
Councillor Amanda De Ryk
Councillor Joe Dromey
Councillor Damien Egan
Councillor Colin Elliott
Councillor Alan Hall
Councillor Carl Handley
Councillor Maja Hilton
Councillor Simon Hooks
Councillor Sue Hordijenko
Councillor Mark Ingleby
Councillor Joyce Jacca
Councillor Stella Jeffrey
Councillor Liz Johnston-Franklin
Councillor Roy Kennedy
Councillor Helen Klier
Councillor Jim Mallory

Councillor Paul Maslin
Councillor Sophie McGeevor
Councillor David Michael
Councillor Joan Millbank
Councillor Jamie Milne
Councillor Hilary Moore
Councillor Pauline Morrison
Councillor John Muldoon
Councillor Olurotimi Ogunbadewa
Councillor Rachel Onikosi
Councillor Jacq Paschoud
Councillor John Paschoud
Councillor Pat Raven
Councillor Joan Reid
Councillor Gareth Siddorn
Councillor Jonathan Slater
Councillor Alan Smith
Councillor Luke Sorba
Councillor Eva Stamirowski
Councillor Alan Till
Councillor Paul Upex
Councillor James-J Walsh
Councillor Susan Wise

Council
Agenda
Wednesday, 23 November 2016
7.30 pm,
Civic Suite
Lewisham Town Hall
London SE6 4RU
For more information contact: Kevin Flaherty (Tel: 0208 314 9327)
Part 1
Item

Pages

1.

Declaration of Interests

1-3

2.

Minutes

4

3.

Petitions

5

4.

Young Mayor

5.

Announcements or Communications

6.

Public Questions

10 - 31

7.

Member questions

32 - 50

8.

Draft response to Boundary Commission for England

51 - 76

9.

Broadway Theatre Working Group Report

77 - 149

10.

Overview and Scrutiny Mid Term Review

150 - 173

11.

Appointments

174

12.

Motion 1 Proposed Councillor Daby Seconded Councillor Moore

175

13.

Motion 2 Proposed Councillor Kennedy Seconded Councillor Till

176

14.

Motion 3 Proposed Councillor De Ryk Seconded Councillor Dacres

177

15.

Motion 4 Proposed Councillor Hall Seconded Councillor Muldoon

178

16.

Motion 5 Proposed Councillor Kennedy Seconded Councillor Hall

179 - 180

6-8
9

Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages.

17.

Motion 6 Proposed Councillor Upex Seconded Councillor Barnham

181 - 182

RECORDING AND USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA
You are welcome to record any part of any Council meeting that is open
to the public.
The Council cannot guarantee that anyone present at a meeting will not
be filmed or recorded by anyone who may then use your image or
sound recording.
If you are intending to audio record or film this meeting, you must :
• tell the clerk to the meeting before the meeting starts
• only focus cameras/recordings on councillors, Council officers, and
those members of the public who are participating in the conduct of the
meeting and avoid other areas of the room, particularly where nonparticipating members of the public may be sitting.
• ensure that you never leave your recording equipment unattended in
the meeting room.
If recording causes a disturbance or undermines the proper conduct of
the meeting, then the Chair of the meeting may decide to stop the
recording. In such circumstances, the decision of the Chair shall be
final.

Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages.

COUNCIL
Report Title

Declarations of Interests

Key Decision

Item No. 1

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

Declaration of interests
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item
on the agenda.
1

Personal interests
There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s
Member Code of Conduct :(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests
(2) Other registerable interests
(3) Non-registerable interests

2

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:-

(a)

Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit
or gain

(b)

Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other
than by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for
inclusion in the register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying
out duties as a member or towards your election expenses (including
payment or financial benefit from a Trade Union).

(c)

Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which
they are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in
the securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for
goods, services or works.

(d)

Beneficial interests in land in the borough.

(e)

Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more.

(f)

Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge,
the Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant
person* is a partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in
the securities of which they have a beneficial interest.

(g)

Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:-

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\0\9\4\ai00015490\$iiglyrem.doc

(a)

that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or
land in the borough; and

(b)

either
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
1/100 of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the
relevant person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the
total issued share capital of that class.

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.
(3)

Other registerable interests
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to
register the following interests:-

(4)

(a)

Membership or position of control or management in a body to
which you were appointed or nominated by the Council

(b)

Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the
influence of public opinion or policy, including any political party

(c)

Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with
an estimated value of at least £25

Non registerable interests
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would
be likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of
Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning the closure of a
school at which a Member’s child attends).

(5)

Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation
(a)

Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they
are present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed,
they must declare the nature of the interest at the earliest
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the
matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest the member must take not
part in consideration of the matter and withdraw from the room
before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to influence
the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest
which has not already been entered in the Register of
Members’ Interests, or participation where such an interest
exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\0\9\4\ai00015490\$iiglyrem.doc

of up to £5000

(6)

(b)

Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of
the interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any
event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless
paragraph (c) below applies.

(c)

Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether
a reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would
think that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to
impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the
member must withdraw and take no part in consideration of the
matter nor seek to influence the outcome improperly.

(d)

If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a
member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating
to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a
registerable interest.

(e)

Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s
personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to
seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer.

Sensitive information
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to
risk of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed
that such interest need not be registered. Members with such an interest
are referred to the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer in advance.

(7)

Exempt categories
There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate
in decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them
doing so. These include:(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the
matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears
exception)
School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school
governor unless the matter relates particularly to the school your
child attends or of which you are a governor;
Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt
Allowances, payment or indemnity for members
Ceremonial honours for members
Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception)

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\0\9\4\ai00015490\$iiglyrem.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title

Minutes

Key Decision

Item No.2

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

Recommendation
It is recommended that the minutes of the meeting of the Council which was open to the
press and public, held on September 21 2016 be confirmed and signed (copy previously
circulated).

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\1\9\4\ai00015491\$t3jng2zn.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title

Petitions

Key Decision

no

Ward

n/a

Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Item No.

Date: November 23 2016

1.

The Council is invited to receive petitions (if any) from members of the Council or
the public. There is no requirement for Councillors to give prior notice of any
petitions that might be presented.

2.

The Council welcomes petitions from the public and recognises that petitions are one way in
which people can let us know their concerns. All petitions sent or presented to the Council
will receive an acknowledgement from the Council within 14 days of receipt. This
acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the petition.

3.

Paper petitions can be sent to :Governance Support, Town Hall, Catford, SE6 4RU
Or be created, signed and submitted on line by following this link
http://lewisham-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal/petitions

4.

Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the Council. Anyone who would like
to present a petition at a Council meeting, or would like a Councillor to present it
on their behalf, should contact the Governance Support Unit on 0208 3149327 at
least 5 working days before the meeting.

5.

Public petitions that meet the conditions described in the Council’s published
petitions scheme and which have been notified in advance, will be accepted and
may be presented from the public gallery at the meeting.

6.

Petitions for the November Council have been notified by the following:
(a) Enamul Khan -Save BWA Muslim Community Centre
(b) Iona Singleton - Fairlawn Primary School parents calling for a lorry ban on
Honor Oak Road)
(c ) Dionne Lewis - Counter-proposal to the proposed Traveller Site on Hornshay
Street
(d) Jacquie Utley - Achilles Street

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\9\4\ai00015492\$2cilqg2f.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title

The Young Mayor of Lewisham

Key Decision

Item No.

Ward

All

Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: 23 November 2016

The Young Mayor of Lewisham
On 24 March 2004 the Council endorsed the Mayor's decisions on the proposal to
set up and fund the office of an annually elected Young Mayor.
The Mayor also agreed to set up an advisory group of between 12 to 30 young
people to support the Young Mayor. These young people will also serve for a 1 year
period and will be drawn from school councils and other representative forums from
across the borough. The membership will have a degree of flexibility to allow for cooptions for particular areas of interest. The group will also allow for non-successful
young mayoral candidates to participate.
The Young Mayor will be an adviser to both the Mayor and to the Council as a
whole, bringing a young person’s perspective to issues of interest. The Young
Mayor will, through various programmes have access to a wider cross section of
young people’s views and will be able to reflect these where appropriate. The Young
Mayor will also advise the Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board;
and be at the forefront of the framework for youth participation in the borough.
The election for a Young Mayor for 2016/17 was held on October 19 2016 with 31
candidates on the ballot paper. As a result, on a turnout of 49.03%, and after a
recount in the closest ever election, Kayla Sh’ay Nswa was elected Young Mayor for
the year 2016/17. She will be the second female to serve in this position.
The candidate with the second highest number of votes, Tekisha Henry, will act as
her Deputy Mayor during her year of office. The third and fourth placed candidates,
Destiny Chapman and Riley Jhanji will represent the Borough at the UK Youth
Parliament.
A Code of Conduct for the Young Mayor and the Deputy Mayor is attached as an
Appendix.

Both the Young Mayor and the appointed Deputy Mayor have been invited to attend
the meeting to sign their Declaration of Acceptance of Office, and an undertaking
that they will abide by the Code of Conduct for their respective offices, which will be
witnessed by the Chief Executive. An invitation to attend the meeting has also been
extended to the members of the Advisory Group who will support the Young Mayor
during her year of office.

COUNCIL MEETING

23 NOVEMBER 2016
APPENDIX
ITEM NO.

Young Mayor for Lewisham
Code of Conduct
Purpose
This Code of Conduct for the Young Mayor, and the Deputy Young Mayor, is designed
to promote public confidence in the actions of elected representatives, and will apply
whenever they carry out activities on behalf of the Council, or act as representatives
of the Council.
The Code


I agree that I will carry out any duties required of me to the best of my ability,
and recognise I have a special duty to all young people in Lewisham,
including those who did not vote for me.



I agree that I will work closely with the Mayor, the Council, the Young Advisers
and the Young Citizens’ Panel, and report regularly to the young people of
Lewisham.



I agree that I will not produce materials or use access to publicity that is
disrespectful to other young people, the Council or the Mayor.



I recognise that if I bring the office of Young Mayor into disrepute or if a
complaint is made against me, that I may be subject to an investigation
carried out by the Chief Executive. If any allegations or breaches of code of
conduct are upheld then I recognise that my term of office may be terminated
immediately.



I agree that I will not behave in a sexist, racist or other manner that may
offend or discriminate against people.



And furthermore, as the key representative of young people within the
borough, I will try and challenge such behaviour if I come across it.

Signed …………………………………………. Dated: 23 November 2016

COUNCIL
Report Title

Announcements or Communications

Key Decision

Item No.

Ward

n/a

Contributors

Chief Executive

Class

Part 1

Date: 23 November 2016

Recommendation
The Council is invited to receive any announcements or communications from the Mayor or
the Chief Executive.
1. Report of the Returning Officer
Following the death of Councillor Crada Onuegbu and the resignation of
Councillor Alicia Kennedy, the Councillors elected for the London Borough of
Lewisham at the by-elections held on 13 October 2016 for a period of office
expiring in May 2018 were as follows:Ward

Surname

Other
Names

Description

Home Address

Evelyn

Jacca

Joyce

The Labour
Party
Candidate

84 Trundleys
Road, SE8 5JG

Brockley

McGeevor

Sophie
Elizabeth

The Labour
Party
Candidate

98 Manor
Avenue
(Basement Flat),
Brockley,
London, SE4
1TE

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\9\4\ai00015493\$eyv1yktb.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title

Public Questions

Key Decision

Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

.

Date: November 23 2016

The Council has received questions from members of the public in the order
shown in the table below. Written responses will be provided to the questioners
prior to the Council meeting and they will be entitled to attend and ask a
supplementary question should they wish to.
Question
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

Questioner
Mr Woolford
Mrs Richardson
Mr Richardson
Corin Ashwell
Jacquie Utley
Mr Bryce
Ken Maxton
Enamul Khan
Mr Woolford
Mrs Richardson
Mr Richardson
Mr Woolford
Mr Richardson

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\4\9\4\ai00015494\$ihjivrem.doc

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 1.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Woolford
Member to reply:

Councillor Smith
Question

Will the Council support Lewisham People Before Profit campaign to install clear
road signage signs around the 6 primary schools in Evelyn Ward which is the only
area in London in which lorries and trucks entering the residential area are NOT
aware of parents & children crossing the roads to school, as Lewisham Council has
failed to install a single School safety sign?
Reply
The Council is fully committed to improving road safety across the whole borough.
Officers will review the primary schools in the Evelyn Ward, in liaison with the
schools and with reference to any issues identified in their school travel plans, and
will advise on new signs or markings which may be appropriate to improve safety in
the vicinity of the schools.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 2.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mrs Richardson
Member to reply:

Councillor Best
Question

We were led to understand in documentation that the Manor House, Lee, would no
longer be the responsibility of the Library and Information Service. In view of the
badly littered library garden, children locked in the lift, cars locked in the library
garden, due to poor signage and information, and any other situation which may
arise, would you please say who is responsible for the building, and which
department should be contacted at the Council, if necessary?
Reply
The Manor House in Lee was and continues to be the responsibility of the Council
and we appreciate residents bringing issues to our attention. Please write to
libraries@lewisham.gov.uk or by ringing 020 8314 8024.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 3.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Richardson
Member to reply:

Councillor Best
Question

Do you agree the implementation of the reduced library opening hours at the Manor
House library building has proved to be most disruptive to library users, despite the
best efforts of CIS Security staff to minimise the consequences of practically no
forward planning prior to the establishment of the Interim Management Scheme?
Do you recall the Users & Friends of Manor House Library advised that it was in the
Council's own interest to get the transition right?
Can the Council explain why the Library and Information Service allowed the
transition from normal management to the IMS without implementing a simple Pilot
Session of say, even two weeks, with members of the Community Engagement
Team being tasked on site for the full 24 hours the library is open per week?
Reply
The interim arrangement for the library provision at Manor House is substantially
reduced and does not of course offer what residents will want to see in the future.
As you are aware, it was unfortunately not possible to identify a suitable partners for
the future management of the building as the reorganisation of the library staff came
to an end. The Council completely agrees with the Users and Friends of Manor

House that there needs to be a smooth transition period to hand over to the new
partner. This transition however will not take effect until early next year.
We did agree thought that in the meantime we would maintain a minimum skeleton
service. It was not possible with the resources that we have available to pilot this in
any way but we will do your best to respond to the particular concerns that are raised
with us during this period. This still feels a better option than to have closed the
building to the public.
We very much look forward to working with the users group and local community
once the new partner has been identified.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 4.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Corin Ashwell
Member to reply:

Councillor Deputy Mayor
Question

London as a whole and Lewisham in particular is highly vulnerable to the risk of
flooding from sea level rises as well as disruption from extreme weather events, as a
result of global warming. In light of this, will Lewisham join with other London
councils in condemning the recent announcement by the government that they are to
press ahead with the expansion of airport capacity in the south-east by building a
new runway at Heathrow, given that aviation is the most rapidly expanding sector
responsible for greenhouse gas emissions, even now accounting for up to 15% of
the UK’s greenhouse gas emissions?
Reply

The Council does have concerns regarding the effect an expansion of Heathrow will
have on air quality and the environment. The Council does not have an official
stance regarding the proposed expansions, however the Mayor has previously

supported groups who have presented opposition including 2M, led by Wandsworth
Council.
The Council would need to fully understand and assess the ramifications of any
expansion of Heathrow, particularly in respect of the effects on the environment and
air quality in the borough of Lewisham and London as a whole. The Council
welcomes improvements and investment into London's transport infrastructure, but is
concerned that any decisions are taken only after a full and detailed evaluation of the
positive and negative effects that any changes will bring, and are not taken for purely
economic reasons.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 5.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Jacquie Utley
Member to reply:

Councillor Egan
Question

Lewisham Council is proposing to redevelop the Achilles Street area and in doing so
it intends to demolish all the homes, businesses and community organisations in the
area. At the consultations held to date, no options other than demolition have been
put forward, why hasn't the Council provided residents with a genuine range of
options to improve the area including refurbishment and infill?

Reply

It is important to be clear that no decision to redevelop the area around Achilles
Street has been made.
What is happening at present is that Council officers and partners are exploring ways
for development in the area to enable new Council houses to be built, whilst enabling
existing residents to remain. The objective is to invest in the area with the existing
community at the heart of any plan.

This process started in 2014, with consultation on proposals for limited “infill”
development, of 22 homes on the site of the current garage block next to Azalea
House.
However during this feasibility work it became apparent that there was wider
potential to build significantly more new homes in the area, as a large amount of land
in the area is given over to surface level car parking, and that therefore a limited
development may not be the optimum solution.
Since then, officers have been considering high level proposals for a more
comprehensive redevelopment of the area. The Council first got in contact with
residents in the area around Achilles in January 2016 and consultation on the
proposals is still on-going; three consultation events have been held so far where the
proposals have been discussed. The proposals have been shaped by resident
feedback and will continue to develop before any decision to proceed with
redevelopment is taken.
In the course of consultation work carried out in the blocks surrounding Achilles
Street, Council officers were made aware of persistent issues with damp and vermin
by residents. Many of these issues relate to the original design and age of the blocks
and could never be completely resolved through refurbishment. If the current blocks
are demolished and replaced with new homes, these will built to much higher
modern standards, be far more energy efficient and will be better designed to avoid
these problems.
The proposals currently being developed for the Achilles Street area will deliver two
important strategic aims; to provide much needed new homes and to improve the
homes of the existing residents. To ensure this is the case the Council commits that
no redevelopment on Achilles Street will take place unless the following conditions
can be met:
1. All current Council tenants who wish to stay in the new development will be able
to do so with the same rent levels and tenancy conditions that they have today;
2. Any resident leaseholder who wishes to will be able to remain in home ownership
on the new development;
3. The number of Council homes will be maintained in any new development, and
we will increase the number as far as is possible within financial constraints;
4. In addition to new Council homes, more affordable homes of other types, such as
shared ownership, will also be provided when any additional homes are built.
No decision to go ahead with the redevelopment of Achilles Street has been taken,
and Council officers are working to present the proposals to Lewisham’s Mayor and
Cabinet to decide whether or not to take them forward in spring 2017. The proposals
aim to provide high quality homes for the current residents of the Achilles Street area
and to build much-needed new homes for the borough.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 6.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Bryce
Member to reply:

Councillor Egan
Question

In a letter to residents of Achilles Street area dated 19 October 2016, Lewisham
Council said "I want to make it clear that no demolition and redevelopment will
proceed unless the following conditions can be met'' All current council tenants who
wish to stay in the new development will be able to do so at the same rent levels and
tenancy conditions as they have today. Any resident leaseholder who wishes to
remain in home ownership on the new development will be able to do so.
Are these guarantees made by Lewisham Council legally binding?
Reply
No decision on whether or not to redevelop the area around Achilles Street has yet
been made.
Council officers are currently working on proposals that will be presented to Mayor
and Cabinet in Spring 2017. The Council wants to invest in the area with the existing
community at the heart of any plan, and to ensure this happens we have committed
that the proposals for redevelopment will not go ahead unless the following four
conditions are met:

1. All current Council tenants who wish to stay in the new development will be able to
do so with the same rent levels and tenancy conditions that they have today;
2.Any resident leaseholder who wishes to will be able to remain in home ownership
on the new development;
3.The number of Council homes will be maintained in any new development, and we
will increase the number as far as is possible within financial constraints;
4.In addition to new Council homes, more affordable homes of other types, such as
shared ownership, will also be provided when any additional homes are built.
These conditions will form part of the proposals that will be presented to Mayor and
Cabinet in Spring 2017. Whilst they are not legally binding, if Mayor and Cabinet
decides to proceed with the proposals it will publically commit that no redevelopment
on Achilles Street will take place unless these conditions are met. The proposals aim
to provide high quality homes for the current residents of the Achilles Street area and
to build much-needed new homes for the borough.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 7.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Ken Maxton
Member to reply:

Councillor Smith
Question

As the New Year seems likely to present the re-starting and re-shaping of
regeneration plans for Catford will the Council ensure that the difficulties of the
Pertersham / Tesco negotiations are explained as far as is lawfully permissible to in
any public consultation document or spoken of knowingly in any address by a
planning officer or other council officer and will the Council say whether or not it will ,
if necessary, close down car parking and secondary shops and allow this
supermarket to pursue its own path to prosperity should it continue to obstruct wider
regeneration plans ?
Reply
Mayor and Cabinet recently agreed that officers develop a masterplan encompassing
key sites in the Town Centre. The creation of the masterplan will involve consultation
and engagement with key stakeholders including land or property owners within the
masterplan area and the wider community. Active engagement and communication
are essential to developing a deliverable masterplan and to that end, officers are in
the process of developing a stakeholder communication and engagement strategy

which will form the basis of how stakeholders such as Tesco/Petersham Land, are
engaged in the regeneration of the Town Centre.
It will be noted, that neither Tesco nor Petersham Land are currently obstructing the
Council’s regeneration plans. The Council will seek to negotiate a mutually acceptable
arrangement with Petersham Land and Tesco.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 8.
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Enamul Khan
Member to reply:

Councillor Egan
Question

Will the Council guarantee a place for the Islamic centre within the Achilles Street
new development with the same levels of rights and privileges it currently has as a
freeholder? Will the Council guarantee that there will be no disruptions to the
services that the Islamic centre provides on a daily basis to the community and that a
suitable temporary place will be provided in the same area for its users during the
phasing stages of the redevelopment?
Reply
No decision on whether or not to redevelop the area around Achilles Street has been
made. At present Council officers and partners are exploring ways for development
in the area to enable new Council houses to be built, whilst enabling existing
residents to remain.
The Council is very committed to working with the Islamic Centre and maintaining
their key place in the local community. At present it is too early to guarantee what the
scheme will provide, but over the next few months as the proposals are developed
further, the Council will engage in more detailed dialogue with the Islamic Centre to
achieve the best outcomes for the Centre and the area.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 9.
Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Woolford
Member to reply:

Cllr Onikosi
Question

With the work started on clearing the site at Convoy Wharf Deptford, can the Council
confirm how often and who is responsible for the safety aspects of the site and the
removal of Toxic waste?
Reply
The health and safety regulatory and enforcement responsibilities for all construction
sites lies with the Health and Safety Executive. Also all waste transfer and carriers
from the site are controlled and regulated by the Environment Agency.
The Council does have controls through Planning in relation to the impact of both
demolition and construction on neighbouring sites. The Environmental Protection
Team has visited the site and will continue to do so as the construction process
continues.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 10 .
Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mrs Richardson
Member to reply:

Councillor Best
Question

Lewisham Council invested a considerable amount of money in the Manor House,
Lee, including a loan which is covered by an annual payment of around £122,000 pa
until 2049. The mainstay of the building, the library service, is now only available for
24 hours per week, mostly supervised by security staff and with a lower level of
service. How will the Council ensure that any lost users, due to the lower level of
service and expectation of what a library offers, will be attracted back once its plans
are fulfilled? How will this impact on the CIPFA figures and the overall success, or
not, of Lewisham's library service?
Reply
The examples of Forest Hill and Torridon Road lead the Council to believe that with
the much appreciated support of local residents and the work of the Library and
Information Service, the library offer at Manor House should resume following the
identification of a new motivated partner for the building.

It is not unusual for the performance of a service to reduce temporarily following the
implementation of large scale change.
The Council would expect performance to improve in the next financial year.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 11.
Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Richardson
Member to reply:

Councillor Best
Question

Are you aware that there have been various incidents of public concern (children
trapped in the lift, cars locked in the library drive, users unaware of the changes etc)
due to the poor notification of the interim management process. Other issues
concern library services, e.g. reservations, using equipment, printing which is not
properly explained and could result in affecting full use of the library service.
What plans does the library service have to mitigate against the continuation of such
problems until a proper partner is in place?
There is also the matter of the unkempt appearance of the public realm (library
entrance garden) and the care and control of the public space within the
building. Will this be monitored and will complaints be logged?
Reply
The Library and Information Service values the comments of local residents and will
work to resolve the issues that have been brought to our attention.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 12.
Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Woolford
Member to reply:

Deputy Mayor
Question

How much money has the Council secured from developers in SE8 for the benefit of
local Deptford residents ?
Reply
Since 2010, the Council has received £4.25m from development in SE8 via the use
of Section 106 agreements. Over the same period, the Council entered into a further
£16m worth of agreements (half of which is to go to TfL) which will begin to be
collected if and when the sites commence. This is in addition to agreements where
the development will directly supply infrastructure, such as the proposed new
primary school at Convoys wharf.
The current balance of S106 amounts held by the Council from sites in SE8 is
around £2.5m – these residual amounts must be utilised for the purpose for which it
was collected for in the legal agreements which would have been subject to legal
tests that; namely that the sums must be necessary to make a development
acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the development and fairly and

reasonably related in scale and kind.. The Council continues to work with the ward
assembly to identify projects that can be funded through ‘community’ s106 amounts
that are not as prescriptive in their permissible expenditure.
The Council introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1 st April 2015.
So far, £1.375m has been received from development in the SE8 area and 15% of
these receipts would form the ‘neighbourhood portion’ (approx. £200k) which would
be spent locally following engagement with the community. In early 2017, the
Council will confirm the process for allocating the neighbourhood proportion of CIL.

Question

Q
Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO 13.
Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question asked by: Mr Richardson
Member to reply:

Councillor Best
Question

Now that the necessary staff reductions have been made and the ensuing
restructuring of staff which followed in order to effect the means of cutting the Library
and Information Service budget by £1m (2016-17); what is the total number of staff
now remaining in this department?
Since 17th October 2016 has the Council found it necessary to engage agency staff
to support its Library and Information Service? If so, how many and for how many
hours and what did it cost?
Is it anticipated or likely that further savings may be required from this department's
budget for the year 2017-18?
Reply
The Library and Information Service recruitment is not complete. Figures related to
the total number of staff will be available when the process is finished. Last month,
the Service had employed 14 agency staff for a total of 11FTEs for a total cost of ca.
£34,000. The number and costs of agency staff is changing daily and subject to

decrease as the Service fills the available vacancies. There are no planned savings
for the budget in 2017-18.

COUNCIL
Report Title

Member Questions

Key Decision

Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

7.

Date: November 23 2016

Questions from Members of the Council
Section C, paragraph 14 of the Constitution, provides for questions relevant to the
general work or procedure of the Council to be asked by Members of the Council.
Copies of the questions received and the replies to them will be circulated at the
meeting.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\9\4\ai00015495\$i4hq0g3f.doc

QUESTION No. 1
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Hall
of the Mayor
Question
Does the Mayor have a view on the Government’s Autumn Statement?
Reply
The Mayor certainly has views on what should be in the Autumn Statement, not least
a very significant increase in support for Adult Social Care and resources for
increasing the amount of Affordable Housing we can build in London over the next
few years. As the statement will be delivered after this is printed I shall be happy to
let members know tonight whether the Chancellor has listened.

QUESTION No. 2
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Coughlin
of the Deputy Mayor
Question
Will Lewisham Council oppose the decision to expand Heathrow, bearing in mind the
findings of the Council's own air pollution monitoring and that of Lewisham Green
Party, that the air quality in much of Lewisham falls below acceptable EU safety
standards?
Reply
Although the expansion of Heathrow raises concerns in relation to continued
Nitrogen Dioxide exceedances of the European limit levels around Heathrow, as it is
not anticipated to affect the road network within Lewisham there is unlikely to be an
impact on the borough’s air quality.
The air quality levels within London are primarily affected by road traffic. Within
Lewisham the air quality exceedances are located near busy roads and are not
therefore widespread across the whole of the borough. The Council however is
looking to tackle air quality and is presenting to the Mayor and Cabinet next month a
new draft of the Air Quality Action Plan. The Council is also looking to support the
London Mayoral expansion of the Ultra-Low Emission Zone (ULEZ), to include the
area north of the South Circular. Both of these initiatives will help to bring Lewisham
within European limit levels at the earliest opportunity.

QUESTION No. 3
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Walsh
of the Cabinet Member for Health, Wellbeing and Older Residents
Question
Last year, this Council pledged its support to reduce the transmission of HIV as part
of the THT Halve it Campaign. Currently the percentage of people living in London
with HIV is 50% of the UK total; of that 50% (25% of all people living with HIV in the
UK) live in Lewisham Lambeth & Southwark.
Could the Mayor identify how the Council is getting along with this key Public Health
work and his action plan for the year ahead?
Reply
The prevalence rate of HIV infection among adults aged 15-59 in Lewisham in 2015
was about 8.26 per 1,000 (2.26 per 1,000 for England). Around 38% of new diagnosis
of HIV in Lewisham are “late”1, for which long-term health outcomes are often poor.
Historically, new HIV infections in Lewisham were predominantly heterosexually
acquired but now arise mainly among men who have sex with men (MSM). Late
diagnosis is a particular concern among Black African communities for whom stigma
can be a strong deterrent to testing.
Lewisham Council’s approach to HIV is underpinned by a commitment to early testing
and treatment to reduce onward transmission, outlined in the Lewisham Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and the LSL Sexual Health Strategy for 2014-17 across Lambeth,
Southwark and Lewisham. LSL have taken a joint approach to commissioning sexual
health services within an agreement to support this objective.

Achievements to date
1

“Late” diagnosis is defined based on laboratory blood testing rather than clinical assessment.

Prevalence in adults has declined from a peak of 8.36 per 1,000 in 2014 to 8.26 per
1,000 in 2015 – the first annual decline seen since at least 2010 and possibly for the
first time since the infection was identified.
The proportion of new, late diagnoses has reduced by 28% since 2009-11. The
reduction between 2012 and 2014 in late diagnoses was 8% which suggests that early
testing continues to be effective. There is however a need for continued action.
The Council will continue to commission the following existing services:
Prevention and sexual health promotion


The Council commissions the RISE Partnership which targets MSM and people
engaging in “Chemsex”2 in particular, together with people with the highest
rates of late diagnoses of HIV (e.g. Black African).
 The Council supports the national HIV testing service led by Public Health
England.
 The Council contributes to the London HIV Prevention Programme and its
media campaign Do-It London, which has a strong focus on improving late
diagnosis among black African communities.
Testing



The Council funds HIV testing in sexual and reproductive health services and
in local GP practices.
Online HIV testing support services such as the HIV.test website offering
targeted testing to MSM and black African communities across the borough.

Training


The Council’s Public Health team deliver Sexual Health In Practice (SHIP)
training for clinical staff working in GP surgeries.

New activity includes a pilot of HIV testing as part of the new patient health check, with
16 practices so far involved. There are plans to extend community HIV testing on a
pilot basis to pharmacies in the borough from early 2017, a few of which will be
supported to provide point-of-care testing for the infection.

“Chemsex” describes the practice of using drugs – often illegal ones – to increase pleasure during
sex, and is a common practice among some groups at particular risk of HIV.
2

QUESTION No. 4
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor John Paschoud
of the Mayor
Question
Are you aware Groups styling themselves as 'political parties' have staged several
stunts in Lewisham, such as 'building social housing' (a small wooden shed) on sites
cleared ready for planned regeneration projects including much-needed housing?
The latest such exercise to generate (albeit just local) news was the 'occupation' of
the Manor House and cafe in Beckenham Place Park, apparently as a protest
against the move by this Council to enable wider use of the park by local people,
rather than exclusive use of much of it as an 18-hole golf course, subsidised at
significant public expense.
Can the Mayor estimate the approximate costs to Lewisham Council Taxpayers of
'clearing up' after any of these demonstrations?
Has any action been taken to recover such costs from any of the organisations or
individuals known to have been involved - some of whom may have significant
assets?
Have any of these costs been successfully recovered, from those responsible?
Reply
There have been several incidents in recent years including the destruction of
hoarding securing a site on Besson Street which was then used to build a
‘house’, protests at the town hall over cuts, the New Cross library ‘read-in’ and
occupation of uneconomic housing stock to prevent disposal.
In the main the costs associated with clearing up after these acts typically cost
£500 to £1,000. However the costs associated with occupation of the housing

stock was much more significant, with lost rent estimated to be in excess of
£15,000.
These costs do not include the sometimes significant amount of officer time
spent dealing with the incidents themselves.
To date, no attempts have been made to recover these costs from those
responsible as there is a risk of incurring further costs in doing so. However,
in light of the continuing financial difficulties the council faces, this is a matter
that will be kept under review.

QUESTION No. 5
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Curran
of the Deputy Mayor
Question
Will the Cabinet Member give an update on the progress of the Housing Action
Zones in New Bermondsey and Catford?
Reply
New Bermondsey:
The New Bermondsey Regeneration programme is one of the first regeneration
scheme to be awarded housing zone status by the Mayor of London and the
Chancellor of the Exchequer in February 2015. The designation is aimed at helping
fast track the delivery of homes and key infrastructure across some of the capital’s key
development opportunity sites.
Following the Housing Zone designation, the GLA has allocated in principle funding of
£20 million towards delivery of key infrastructure associated with the Scheme,
including the new Overground Station at Surrey Canal Road. The GLA initially
proposed that the allocated sum would be advanced to Renewal (the developer) as
loan funding. In a revised approach, however, the GLA now proposes that a grant
agreement (known as a Borough Intervention Agreement) is entered into between the
Council and the GLA whereby the GLA will provide grant funding of c. £12 million
which will be passed by the Council to TfL with a requirement that TfL deliver the new
Overground Station at Surrey Canal Road and open it within a set period. The balance
of the £20 million allocation will remain available for Renewal to take up through a
second intervention. A clear benefit of this approach is that as the new station will now
be grant funded, this enables the sum which would otherwise be paid by Renewal
towards the new station to be applied to the provision of additional affordable housing
within the Scheme.
Thus, not only will the GLA’s current funding approach allow early delivery of the
station and development of the first two phases of the Scheme (Phases 1A and 2) to
proceed ahead of schedule delivering 532 new homes, it will also secure delivery of

more additional affordable homes than were originally to be provided within the
Scheme. The exact quantum of additional affordable housing to be delivered as a
result of this approach will form part of revised S106 for the scheme the details of
which are currently being worked through.

Catford:
In March 2016 the GLA announced that Catford had been awarded an indicative
allocation of £30 million made up of £27.2m affordable housing grant, £1.3m for rail
station arrival space and £1.5m for flood alleviation. This followed an application for
Housing Zone funding to help support the delivery of the scheme. Whilst the grant was
lower than requested it is a sizeable contribution towards delivery of the regeneration
programme and will have a marked effect on what can be delivered.
Following agreement at Mayor and Cabinet on 28th September that the Council should
enter into formal agreement with the GLA to establish the Catford Housing Zone,
officers have prepared the necessary background papers and are finalising the legal
agreement with the aim of completing this by the end of November. The next phase of
work will involve the preparation of outline plans for early interventions to improve the
train station arrival experience and flood resilience.
A significant part of the Housing Zone grant for Catford is aimed at supporting the
scheme to deliver a greater percentage of affordable housing. However, certainty on
specific housing outputs from the redevelopment of key sites in the town centre will
not be known until the design is sufficiently advanced. It is likely that subsequent
Borough Intervention Agreements for affordable housing will not be entered into until
planning approval for each development phase has been achieved.
Discussions on the form of affordable housing to be delivered through the grant
support will however be continued with the GLA as plans for redevelopment are
advanced and as the housing priorities of the new Mayor of London become clear.
The Council will continue to seek that new affordable housing clearly meets the
housing needs identified by the borough.

QUESTION No. 6
Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People
Question
Is the Mayor able to outline when the London Borough of Lewisham decide to
pilot their Lift project through National Star and how was the decision made? Also
given that LBL grant funded VSL to provide a Travel Training project, what was
LBL rationale for piloting the Lift project through National Star, how was the
decision made and was there any consideration on LBL’s part around the
potential impact on VSL’s travel training service and/or grant funding? Was there
a consultation period/tendering process, if so why were VSL not included in this
consultation process and finally why wasn’t VSL informed of the new project once
LBL had engaged National Star, and why wasn’t there a discussion on how the
two projects could work together to provide a synergistic approach?
Reply
The contract with National Star will begin on the 21st November 2016 to provide
Independent Travel Training through their nationally recognised LIFT programme
as part of our offer of Travel Assistance for Children and Young People with
SEND who are eligible for assistance. As a result of consulting the market
National Star were the only provider that could provide the desired outcomes and
scale of the service within the timescales required, and were therefore awarded
the contract directly.
As part of identifying what service was needed officers contacted other
organisations to understand what they offered and the services provided,
including VSL. Some organisations did not respond, including VSL.
The award to National Star does not impact on VSL service or funding. We are
still signposting families to VSL travel training service and we see both schemes
working alongside each other. Officers will facilitate discussions with VSL and
National Star to support both organisations working together.

QUESTION No. 7
Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Deputy Mayor
Question
Would the Deputy Mayor please outline his thoughts and what action could be
taken with regards to the banning of HGV along Honor Oak Road as requested
by local residents and parents?
Reply
Honor Oak Road is a classified District Distributor (the B2142), and has been
since the inception of the road classification system in the 1920s. This is because
it provides an important link on the network, between the south circular and the
Honor Oak Park / Forest Hill Road corridor, and is expected to carry a significant
amount of both local and through traffic. The road is also part of the Emergency
Services Priority Route Network
The main concern with banning HGV traffic would be the redistribution of heavy
vehicles onto other routes. Any scheme to cut out traffic on Honor Oak Road
would have a significant impact on other roads, particularly Devonshire Road,
which itself is narrow and residential in nature, and which is similarly subject of
requests to reduce traffic. A ban on either of these roads would also have a
significant on Brockley Rise, which also has schools and known road safety and
air quality issues.
The Council recognises the impact of traffic on local residents, and has recently
implemented a 20mph limit on all borough roads in order to reduce this impact
and improve road safety. The Council continues to work with local schools on
road safety issues and is working closely with the Police in encouraging
increasing compliance with the new 20mph speed limit.
In the longer term, the Council is working with TfL on the consideration of a wider
Ultra-Low Emission Zone which would greatly improve air quality within the north
and south circular roads.

QUESTION No. 8
Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Cabinet Member for the Public Realm
Question
Is the Cabinet Member able to outline what are the levels of air quality outside of
each of the primary schools located within Forest Hill Ward and what
action Lewisham Council is able to take (working with the Mayor of London’s
office) in order to improve these levels?
Reply
The Primary Schools within the Forest Hill ward are:






Kelvin Grove Primary School, Kelvin Grove, SE26
Elliot Bank Primary School, Thorpewood Ave, SE26
Horniman Primary School, Horniman Drive, SE23
Fairlawn Primary School, Honor Oak Road, SE23
Holy Trinity Church of England School, Dartmouth Road, SE23

The GLA issued a report this year listing all the primary schools that exceeded
the Nitrogen Dioxide annual mean European limit levels, based on prediction
modelling, for years 2010 and then forecasted for 2020. None of the above
schools were listed on the table.
The Environmental Protection team has a network of over 30 nitrogen dioxide
tubes in the borough which record nitrogen dioxide levels. None of these are
located outside Forest Hill primary schools. However, there is a nitrogen dioxide
tube outside 8 Stanstead Road which is likely to reflect similar annual traffic
conditions to those at the other school locations and the annual mean in 2015 for
this location was again below the European limit level. All of the Council’s air
monitoring details and results can be found on the following link:
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/environment/air-pollution/Pages/airquality-monitoring.aspx
The Council has produced a new draft Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP), which is
going to Mayor and Cabinet next month for approval. This AQAP will continue to

look at measures around schools to reduce the impacts on air quality. This
includes encouraging schools to join the TfL STARS accredited travel planning
programme, offering an air quality / sustainability play for year 6 pupils at 28
schools around the borough and running an ‘anti idling’ poster competition at 15
priority schools.
The Council has already introduced a 20 mph speed limit on all their managed
roads, which will reduce congestion on the roads and associated pollution levels.
Also the Council is expanding the electric vehicle charging points and along with
encouragement for cycling and walking, is working to improve the infrastructure
for less polluting, sustainable modes of transport.

ED Cust Servs
QUESTION No. 9
Priority 4

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Cabinet Member for Housing
Question
Please give an update on the opening of Hamilton Lodge, also outline how many
Lewisham families will benefit and what is the potential saving made in not paying
landlords for temporary accommodation?
Reply

I was pleased to attend the opening of Hamilton Lodge last week, and can confirm
that Hamilton Lodge is now fully let.
The first households moved in on 28th October. The 21 households now living in
Hamilton Lodge all previously lived in expensive nightly paid accommodation.
As well as providing higher quality in-borough accommodation for these households,
Hamilton Lodge will also save the Council just under £100,000 a year by not paying
for nightly paid accommodation. All the rents are set at the Local Housing Allowance,
which means that housing benefit will cover the full amount. The rents paid will also
generate an income for the Council.

QUESTION No. 10
Priority 5

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Cabinet Member for Housing
Question
Please give an update with regards to the proposals for development on the site of
Forest Hill Estate/ Eliot Bank?
Reply
Lewisham Homes and BPTW Architects have recently carried out studies of the
Forest Estate on behalf of the Council in order to inform our proposals for new
homes on the estate. These studies included site constraints, the quality of the
existing estate and public realm, and the number of new homes that could be
provided.
The result is that priority will be given to progressing the two Knapdale Close sites.
This work will take a fresh look at the design of the new block and will also propose
improvements to the estate to complement the housing development.
The proposed development of the Eliot Bank site will not be taken any further at this
time.
This will be communicated to local residents and there will be further consultation
exercises in the New Year to discuss the Knapdale Close scheme with residents.

QUESTION No. 11
Priority 6

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Deputy Mayor
Question
Please could the Mayor give an outline of what proposals are being developed for
the site of the old Fairlawn Nursery in Forest Hill?
Reply
We are currently looking at a range of options for this site, all of which involve
housing and may also include a range of alternative uses.
We expect to start consulting with the community on these options early in the New
Year.

QUESTION No. 12
Priority 7

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Cabinet Member for Health, Wellbeing and Older People
Question
Would the Mayor write to all existing Group Practices that border Forest Hill ward
including those in neighbouring boroughs encouraging them to look at opportunities
to provide a GP service actually within Forest Hill Ward?
Reply
Responsibility for GP services in Lewisham sits with NHS England and NHS
Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group. I have asked them to provide a response
to your question which I will forward to you in due course.

QUESTION No. 13
Priority 8

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Deputy Mayor
Question
Would the Deputy Mayor be able to work with highways to ensure that the existing
street clutter outside WH Smiths in Forest Hill (old lamppost and signage) is
removed as soon as possible?
Reply
The A205 South Circular is part of the Transport for London Road Network, and so
TfL have responsibility for all signs and street furniture at this location.
The Council has raised this issue with TfL in the past and there is a project in their
2016/17 programme to improve the “A205 Devonshire Road j/w London Road
Outside Forest Hill Station”. The proposal is looking at junction improvements to
improve pedestrian crossing just outside WH Smith. The scheme is currently with
TfL designers and one of the scheme’s elements is to remove the de-clutter the
area outside WHSmiths and to introduce Legible London signs so all the signs on
the lamp post will post will no longer be needed. Confirmation of the scheme is
subject to detailed design and finalised cost estimates, but the Council will continue
to press for the works to be committed.

QUESTION No. 14
Priority 9

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
COUNCIL MEETING
23 NOVEMBER 2016

Question by Councillor Upex
of the Cabinet Member for the Public Realm
Question
Please explain the rationale behind not providing a discount for pensioners/low
income/disabled Lewisham residents who have signed up to the Garden Waste
collection scheme. Also would she ensure that the scale of charges is considered in
any reviews that takes place following the implementation of the scheme this year?
Reply
In arriving at the cost for the subscription charge, the Council asked residents their
thoughts on what level the charge should be in the Let’s Talk Rubbish consultation.
Of those that answered, 87% were willing to pay £80 per year. In addition, officers
also looked at what other local authorities were charging: of those that offer a
wheelie bin garden waste service, eleven authorities charge for the service, the
majority are £60+ a year.
Mayor & Cabinet agreed the charge of £60 per year, which was reduced from the
£80 per year proposed in the consultation and it is believed that the costs of the
garden waste service are consistent with that of other local authorities.
There has been an introductory charge of £45 for the garden waste service this year,
and next year the charge has been set at £60. The scale of charges will be reviewed
in subsequent years once the service has bedded in.

Council
Report Title

Response to Boundary Review

Key
Decision

n/a

Ward

n/a

Contributors

Chief Executive, Head of Law

Class

Part 1

1.

Item No.

Date: 23 November 2016

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to provide a response to the Boundary Commission
for England’s consultation on their initial proposals for new Parliamentary
constituency boundaries in London.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

Members agree the content of this report with regard the counter proposal that
was considered by the Elections Committee and agree to submit this report to the
Boundary Commission for England in support of the counter proposal as set out
in appendix C.

2.2

Members also agree to authorise the Chief Executive to re-submit his letter
relating to the use of the 1/12/15 register to the Boundary Commission for
England (as attached at appendix D) now that the consultation window is open.

3.

Background

3.1

The Parliamentary Voting Systems and Constituencies Act 2011 (the Act) made
provision for a reduction in the number of UK parliamentary constituencies from
650 to 600. To implement this change in England, the Boundary Commission for
England (the BCE) must complete a review of parliamentary constituencies by
September 2018. The BCE began such a review in 2011 but it was discontinued.

3.2

The BCE has now started afresh and initial proposals for new Parliamentary
constituency boundaries in England were published by the Boundary
Commission for England (BCE) on 13th September 2016. This report will focus
specifically on the proposals for Constituencies that fall, or are proposed to fall,
wholly or partly within the boundary of the London Borough of Lewisham. Full
information on all the proposals is available on their website:
http://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/

3.3

The Act introduced a UK quota for the number of electors in any constituency.
By the application of a formula, that quota is 74769. Schedule 2 of the Act states

that every constituency must “at the review date” have an electorate of at least
95% and not more than 105% of that quota. This means that every constituency
must have between 71031 and 78507 electors. The statute provides that the
review date is 1/12/15.
3.4

The BCE is conducting its review on a regional basis, according to the EU
regions. The number of constituencies in England will be 501. The Isle of Wight
will have 2 of these leaving 499 for the rest of England. Currently in London
(including the City) there are 73 MPs. Under the review proposals there will be
68.

3.5

The Act is clear that the electoral quota will take precedence but it allows the
BCE to take into account a number of other factors in developing proposals.
These are:-

3.6

3.7

(a)

Special geographical considerations – size, shape and accessibility of
the constituency. This means physical factors such as mountains, hills,
rivers, estuaries etc. It does not include human or social factors in this
category.

(b)

Local government boundaries – both external and internal ward
boundaries. The Guidance is clear that wards are to be the “default
building blocks” of new constituencies. However, the BCE
acknowledges that ward boundaries may be crossed where there are
compelling, exceptional circumstances which must be supported by
strong evidence. The BCE will use groupings of two or more local
authority areas in drawing up initial proposals. These sub regions will
be explained when their initial proposals are published. The BCE
intends not to cross the boundary of the sub-region where possible.

(c)

Existing constituencies –The proposals will not be developed from a
“blank piece of paper” though the BCE state that it may be necessary
to depart from existing constituencies to bring new ones within the
statutory range and to reduce the number of constituencies.

(d)

Any local ties that would be broken by a change.

There are a number of factors which the BCE may not take into account. These
are:(a)

The effect on future election results

(b)

New local government boundaries put in place after 7th May 2015

(c)

Changes (up or down) in electorate numbers since 1st December 2015

Though the review date is explicit in the Act, the BCE states at paragraph 40 of
its Guidance as follows:-

“However, the BCE does not take the view that it is obliged to shut its eyes
entirely to growth (or decline) that has occurred since the review date, which
it may be aware of from the annual updates of electorate figures it receives,
or that it is satisfied is likely to occur. Such a factor may be taken into
account in choosing between two or more competing options for the same
area that satisfy the statutory rules”
3.8

The procedure for the review entails a number of stages:(a)

On 13/9/16 the BCE the published initial proposals on its website and
put them on deposit with Councils and in other places where the public
can view them.

(b)

There is now an initial consultation period of 12 weeks for
representations to be made. The BCE encourages written
representations and states that any objections will be considered to
have more weight if they are accompanied by a viable alternative
proposal. The last date for written representations will be 5th
December 2016.

(c)

During the 12 week initial consultation a number of public hearings
have been held. These were not public inquiries which have been
abolished rather they were short hearings lasting no more than 2 days
each at which, the Guidance states, the BCE will explain the initial
proposals and people may gave their views.

(d)

As soon as possible after the 12 week initial consultation period, the
BCE will publish all representations made including the record of the
public hearings. There then follows a period of 4 weeks during which
people may submit written comments on the representations received
in the initial consultation period. There are no hearings at this stage.

(e)

The BCE staff and Assistant Commissioner then produce a joint report
for the Commissioners who decide whether any and if so what
revisions ought to be made to the initial proposals. The Commissioners
then publish a report saying whether revisions have been made or not.

(f)

If revisions have been made, there follows a further period of 8 weeks
during which representations may be made on the revised proposals.
There are no hearings and no repetition of the 4 week period.

(g)

The final report and any representations made in that 8 week period
are published and a formal written report for the whole of England is
submitted to the Government. It describes the review, sets out the
recommendations and includes maps of the new constituencies.

(h)

4
4.1

The Government must lay the report before Parliament. It has no
discretion to change it. It lays a draft Order giving effect to the
recommendations. The draft Order must be approved (or rejected) by
both Houses of Parliament. Once the Order has effect, it cannot be
challenged and the new constituencies apply at the next General
Election – scheduled for 2020.

Proposals
Maps summarising three scenarios have been provided in the appendices to this
report:
Appendix A: existing constituency boundaries in the London borough of
Lewisham
Appendix B: BCE proposals
Appendix C: counter proposal considered by the Elections Committee

4.2

The tables below outline the existing constituencies within the London Borough of
Lewisham:
Constituency
Wards (all LB Lewisham Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
unless stated)
figure)
Lewisham Deptford
Brockley
10,337
Crofton Park
9,579
Evelyn
9,129
Ladywell
8,688
Lewisham Central
10,532
New Cross
9,077
Telegraph Hill
9,824
Constituency
Lewisham West and
Penge

Constituency
Lewisham East

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Bellingham
Forest Hill
Perry Vale
Sydenham
Clock House (LB
Bromley)
Crystal Palace (LB
Bromley)
Penge & Cator (LB
Bromley)

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
9,019
9,201
9,807
9,663
10,932

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Blackheath
Catford South
Downham
Grove Park
Lee Green

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
8,642
9,413
9,072
9,249
9,182

7,783
11,248

Rushey Green
Whitefoot
4.3

8,053
8,755

The tables below outline the proposed BCE constituencies within the London
Borough of Lewisham:
Constituency
Greenwich and Deptford
BC

Constituency
Lewisham and Catford
BC

Constituency
Peckham and Lewisham
West

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Blackheath Westcombe
(RB Greenwich)
Greenwich West (RB
Greenwich)
Peninsula (RB
Greenwich)
Blackheath
Brockley
Evelyn
Lee Green
New Cross

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
9,103

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Bellingham
Catford South
Downham
Grove Park
Ladywell
Lewisham Central
Rushey Green
Whitefoot

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
9,019
9,413
9,072
9,249
8,688
10,532
8,053
8,755

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Crofton Park
Forest Hill
Perry Vale
Sydenham
Telegraph Hill
Nunhead (LB
Southwark)
Peckham Rye (LB
Southwark)
The Lane (LB
Southwark)

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
9,579
9,201
9,807
9,663
9,824
9,269

11,499
10,036
8,642
10,337
9,129
9,182
9,077

9,463
10,550

4.4

The Council’s Election Committee considered a counter proposal at their meeting
on 31/10/2016 and the tables below outline the proposal for constituencies within
the London Borough of Lewisham:
Constituency
Lewisham East &
Greenwich

Constituency
Lewisham Deptford and
Catford

Constituency
Lewisham West and
Dulwich

5

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Blackheath Westcombe
(RB Greenwich)
Greenwich West (RB
Greenwich)
Peninsula (RB
Greenwich)
Blackheath
Downham
Grove Park
Lee Green
Whitefoot

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
9,103

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Brockley
Catford South
Evelyn
Ladywell
Lewisham Central
New Cross
Rushey Green
Telegraph Hill

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
10,337
9,413
9,129
8,688
10,532
9,077
8,053
9,824

Wards (all LB Lewisham
unless stated)
Bellingham
Crofton Park
Forest Hill
Perry Vale
Sydenham
East Dulwich (LB
Southwark)
College (LB Southwark)
Village (LB Southwark)

Electorate (BCE 1/12/15
figure)
9,019
9,579
9,201
9,807
9,663
9,127

Previous Reponses from Lewisham

11,499
10,036
8,642
9,072
9,249
9,182
8,755

8,312
8,592

5.1

Members’ and officers have previously responded to the BCE to challenge the
methodology employed in the review and in particular the use of the 1st
December register as the base electorate in the local area.

5.2

On 20th July a full meeting of Lewisham’s unanimously passed a motion
declaring:
“The Government is currently part way through a Parliamentary Boundary Review
that bases its methodology on elector numbers from December 2015. The
Government ambition has been to reduce the number of MPs to 600. That
controversially the government have based the notional size of constituencies on
the electoral registers from December 2015, which was after the move from
household registrations to individual electoral registrations (IER), has
disproportionately affected inner city areas like Lewisham in making the
transition. Millions of voters have gone missing from the electoral roll. The
independent Electoral Commission did recommended that those on the register
following the General Election in May 2015 should remain on the register until
December 2016. The Government ignored that advice.
As examples of impact: the electoral register in Liverpool is down 14,000 from
December 2014, Birmingham by 19,000 and Lewisham by 6,000 even when
there is an actual increase in population in these areas. That registrations to vote
increased by 18.6% from December 2015 - placing Lewisham at the top of the
league table in elector growth, and London the largest regional growth with 7%.
Council Believes:
This Governments aspiration has been to reduce both the number of MPs, but
shamefully the number of electors on the electoral roll in a partisan way, by
introducing new electoral procedures, such as individual electoral registrations
(IER) that disproportionately disadvantage inner city areas like Lewisham. That
Lewisham is potentially going to lose one third of its current say in Parliament if
the figures aren't updated in the Boundary Review to reflect these large
significant changes.”

5.3

Furthermore the Council resolved to urgently write to the Boundary Commission
to set out their concerns and make clear that this unprecedented growth must not
be ignored and ask for urgent action to resolve this issue. This resulted in the
letter from the Chief Executive to the Boundary Commission (attached as
appendix D) that re-iterated the points raised by full Council:
“Lewisham Council has serious concerns that if the 2018 Parliamentary
Boundary Review is conducted solely on the basis of the electoral roll in
Lewisham at 1 December 2015, the people in its 3 parliamentary constituencies,
Lewisham Deptford, Lewisham East and Lewisham West, will be significantly
under represented for years to come. Because of this, we ask the Boundary
Commission for England (BCE) not to rely on the December 2015 electoral
register alone, but instead to consider the July 2016 electoral roll as a fairer and
more accurate reflection of the electorate in the 3 Lewisham constituencies.”

5.4

Moreover the letter covered a number of key points:
- The 8.54% growth of registered electors across the three constituencies
between 1st December 2015 and 1st July 2016 – a period that included the EU
Referendum.
- The significant population growth and the scale of development being
experienced in Lewisham
- The impact of demographics on register completeness in Lewisham

5.5

This letter has already been sent to the BCE prior to the announcement of the
proposals however it was returned by the BCE who asked that it is re-submitted
during the formal consultation period. This report recommends that members now
authorise re-submission.

6

BCE proposal and impact on previous responses

6.1

The BCE proposals were published after the submission and/or publication of
both of Lewisham’s previous submissions to the process of the review. However
now that the proposals have been published are clear that the arguments remain
relevant and with regard to Greenwich and Deptford BC the arguments around
growth and under registration are in fact strengthened with the inclusion of the
Royal Borough of Greenwich’s Peninsula Ward which has an estimated
population of 24,500 (2015 Greater London Authority Estimate) and a projected
population of 49,150 by 2041. Despite this there is a registered electorate of only
10,036 on 1/12/15. RB Greenwich’s most recent figures show that the
parliamentary register for Peninsula stood at 11,679 by September 2016 which
gives a further indication of the scale of growth.

6.2

However these arguments have already been made in the attached response
and will be re-submitted for the BCE’s consideration. This report recommends
that members now authorise re-submission of the letter from the Chief Executive
to the BCE in relation to growth and potential under representation in Lewisham.

7

Counter Proposal

7.1

As mentioned previously the Council’s Electoral Committee has considered a
Counter Proposal that has been backed by Members.

7.2

The impact of this on Lewisham is minimal with the proposed constituencies still
crossing boundary lines into Greenwich and Southwark however the committee
noted a number of points that should be conveyed to the BCE in line with the
provision outlined in the Act:

7.3

Special geographical considerations – size, shape and accessibility of the
constituency

Peckham and Lewisham West / Lewisham West and Dulwich
The attached maps at appendix B and C demonstrate that the counter proposal
with regard to the Lewisham West and Dulwich constituency constitutes a much
more accessible constituency than the BCE’s proposed Peckham and Lewisham
West BC. The South Circular (A205) gives easy vehicular access through or
bordering 5 of the 8 wards and connecting to major routes (Sydenham High
Road, Perry Hill and Lordship Lane) give easy access to the other wards.
Furthermore there are major bus routes (i.e. 185 to Victoria, 176 to Tottenham
Court Road) that connect up these wards in the South of Lewisham and
Southwark.
Greenwich and Deptford / Lewisham East and Greenwich
The connections between wards in the South of Lewisham and Greenwich
Peninsula would prove difficult under this new proposal but arguably the
connections between Evelyn and New Cross and Peninsula (for example) are not
much easier given the focus on the Jubilee Line or a busy section of the South
Circular going towards the Blackwall Tunnel to access much of Peninsula.
Essentially both proposals seem to accept that a constituency must cross the
Greenwich and Lewisham boundary at this point to allow the electoral maths
work so any proposal will be far from ideal.
Lewisham and Catford / Lewisham Deptford and Catford
Lewisham Deptford and Catford represents an area of the borough that is
relatively easy to access given the major transport hub in Lewisham Town
Centre. A similar argument could be made for Lewisham and Catford for the
South of the borough given the transport hub is within the boundary of both
proposals.
However a further point was noted at the Election’s Committee around the redevelopment plans for the three town centres in Deptford, Catford and Lewisham
that will mean more housing and businesses in these areas and a comparable
set of issues that may be faced by residents across the proposed constituency.
7.4

Local government boundaries – both external and internal ward boundaries.
As noted above the net effect of the counter proposal in terms of external
boundaries will remain the same for Lewisham but will reduce the amount of
multi-borough constituencies elsewhere in London. Whilst cross borough
constituencies are far from ideal Lewisham must accept that in light of the
decision to use the 1/12/15 register there will be a requirement to cross
boundaries to ensure that electorate quotas are reached for local constituencies.

7.5

Existing constituencies
The table on the next page shows the effect on LB Lewisham electoral wards of
the BCE proposal and the Counter Proposal. The final column indicates whether

the proposed constituency for each ward is regarded as the main successor
constituency on transition from the current arrangements.

Ward

Current
Constituency

BCE Proposed
Constituency

Main Successor
constituency?

Bellingham

Lewisham West
and Penge

Lewisham and
Catford BC

No

Blackheath

Lewisham East

Greenwich and
Deptford BC

No

Brockley

Lewisham
Deptford

Greenwich and
Deptford BC

Yes

Catford South

Lewisham East

Lewisham and
Catford BC

Yes

Crofton Park

Lewisham
Deptford

Peckham and
Lewisham West
BC

No

Downham

Lewisham East

Lewisham and
Catford BC

Yes

Evelyn

Lewisham
Deptford

Greenwich and
Deptford BC

Yes

Forest Hill

Lewisham West
and Penge

Peckham and
Lewisham West
BC

Yes

Grove Park

Lewisham East

Lewisham and
Catford BC

Yes

Ladywell

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham and
Catford BC

No

Lee Green

Lewisham East

Greenwich and
Deptford BC

No

Lewisham Central Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham and
Catford BC

No

New Cross

Lewisham
Deptford

Greenwich and
Deptford BC

Yes

Perry Vale

Lewisham West
and Penge

Peckham and
Lewisham West
BC

Yes

7.6

Rushey Green

Lewisham East

Lewisham and
Catford BC

Yes

Sydenham

Lewisham West
and Penge

Peckham and
Lewisham West
BC

Yes

Telegraph Hill

Lewisham
Deptford

Peckham and
Lewisham West
BC

No

Whitefoot

Lewisham East

Lewisham and
Catford BC

Yes

The table below shows the same information based on the counter proposal
considered by the Elections Committee:
Ward

Current
Constituency

Counter
Proposal
Constituency

Main Successor
constituency?

Bellingham

Lewisham West
and Penge

Lewisham West
and Dulwich

Yes

Blackheath

Lewisham East

Lewisham East
and Greenwich

Yes

Brockley

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

Yes

Catford South

Lewisham East

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

No

Crofton Park

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham West
and Dulwich

No

Downham

Lewisham East

Lewisham East
and Greenwich

Yes

Evelyn

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

Yes

Forest Hill

Lewisham West
and Penge

Lewisham West
and Dulwich

Yes

Grove Park

Lewisham East

Lewisham East
and Greenwich

Yes

Ladywell

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

Yes

Lee Green

Lewisham East

Lewisham East
and Greenwich

Yes

Lewisham Central Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

Yes

New Cross

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

Yes

Perry Vale

Lewisham West
and Penge

Lewisham West
and Dulwich

Yes

Rushey Green

Lewisham East

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

No

Sydenham

Lewisham West
and Penge

Lewisham West
and Dulwich

Yes

Telegraph Hill

Lewisham
Deptford

Lewisham
Deptford &
Catford

Yes

Whitefoot

Lewisham East

Lewisham East
and Greenwich

Yes

7.7

To summarise there are 7 wards that will not be in their main successor
constituency under the BCE proposal and only 3 under the Counter Proposal
suggesting that the counter proposal would minimise disruption for Lewisham
Electors.

7.8

Any local ties that would be broken by a change.
The arguments above also apply here as the counter proposal minimises the
movement between constituencies for electors and provide a constituency in the
South of the Borough that is better connected to neighbouring wards in
Southwark.

8

Conclusion

8.1

The previous submissions to the BCE consultation around the methodology as
laid out in the Act are still relevant and should be resubmitted as part of the
formal BCE consultation process.

8.2

Furthermore this paper offers arguments as presented and discussed at
Elections Committee in favour of the Counter Proposal that was tabled. Broadly
these follow two main lines of argument in line with the factors that the BCE are
able to take into account under the terms of the Act:
- Better transport between wards in the counter proposal than the BCE proposal
- Minimised disruption for electors under the counter proposal

9

Financial implications

9.1

There are no financial implications arising.

10

Legal implications

10.1

The Parliamentary Voting Systems and Constituencies Act 2011 (the Act) made
provision for a reduction in the number of UK parliamentary constituencies from
650 to 600. To implement this change in England, the Boundary Commission for
England (the BCE) must complete a review of parliamentary constituencies by
September 2018. Full legislation is available online:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/1/contents/enacted

11

Crime and disorder implications
There are no crime and disorder implications arising.

12

Equalities implications
To fulfil its duty under the Equality Act 2010, the Council’s engagement strategy
is designed to encourage registration by those with protected characteristics and
hard to reach groups. The Council will continue to seek to maximise political
representation for all residents.

13

Environmental implications
There are no environmental implications arising.

Background documents
-

-

BCE Proposal for the London Region: http://bcedocuments.s3.amazonaws.com/consultationdocuments/1473420028_London%20Initial%20proposals%20report.pdf?AWS
AccessKeyId=AKIAJG2X7BQ35X2H7LAA&Expires=1478772786&Signature=
ZZe9f%2FAbHmePU3WB2sehWtrgniI%3D
The Parliamentary Voting Systems and Constituencies Act 2011:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/1/contents/enacted

Appendices

-

Appendix A: Map of existing parliamentary constituency boundaries
Appendix B: Map of BCE proposed parliamentary constituency Boundaries
Appendix C: Map of proposed parliamentary constituency Boundaries
considered as a counter proposal by the Council’s Elections Committee
Appendix D: Chief Executive’s letter to the BCE
Appendix E: Motion passed at full Council on 20th July 2016.

Draft letter from Barry Quirk to Boundary Commission for England
Re: Lewisham Deptford, Lewisham East, Lewisham West

I am aware that the Commission will shortly be publishing proposals for new Parliamentary
boundaries. My purpose in writing is to ask that you bear in mind this submission in drawing
up your proposals.
Lewisham Council has serious concerns that if the 2018 Parliamentary Boundary Review is
conducted solely on the basis of the electoral roll in Lewisham at 1 December 2015, the
people in its 3 parliamentary constituencies, Lewisham Deptford, Lewisham East and
Lewisham West, will be significantly under represented for years to come.
As a result of this possible outcome, I strongly urge the Boundary Commission for England
(BCE) not to rely solely on the December 2015 electoral register alone, but instead to
consider the July 2016 electoral roll as a fairer and more accurate reflection of the electorate
in the three Lewisham constituencies.
We appreciate that the Parliamentary Voting Systems and Constituencies Act 2011 provides
that the figures to be used as a basis for the review are those in the version of the electoral
registers on the ‘review date’ – namely 1 December 2015. Whilst this number is given
precedence in the Act, we ask that the BCE adopt the approach to the electoral numbers set
out in the statutory guidance. It is clear from that guidance that it is not intended that the
electoral number as at 1 December 2015 should be a straightjacket beyond which the BCE
may not look. Paragraph 40 of the guidance states:“However the BCE does not take the view that it is obliged to shut its eyes
entirely to growth (or decline) that has occurred since the review date,
which it may be aware of from the annual updates of electorate figures it
receives, or that is satisfied is likely to occur. Such a factor may be taken
into account in choosing between two or more competing options for the
same area that satisfy the statutory rules”
The reasons why we ask that the BCE adopt this approach in considering the
options for the Lewisham constituencies are set out below.
The impact of the EU referendum on registration in Lewisham
Chart 1 below shows the increasing electorate in Lewisham’s constituencies
between 1 December 2015 and 1 July 2016. This represents a growth of 8.54%
between 1 December 2015 and 1 July 2016 with an increase of over 16,000 in
successful registrations in this period.

No doubt this was precipitated generally by the extent of public interest in the EU
referendum as the date approached and by successful campaigns to promote
electoral registration. This increase in demand for registration was evidenced by
the collapse of the Government’s own website which could not cope with the
demand for new registrations, resulting in the extension of the deadline for
registration by 2 days.
In Lewisham however the impact was exceptional. Perhaps due to the strength of
local campaigns to promote registration, the increase in the numbers on the
electoral roll in Lewisham between 1 December 2015 and 1 July 2016 was greater
than any other Authority in London. Figures produced by the Electoral
Commission attached to this letter confirm this.
As Chart 2 below demonstrates, the increase in applications for individual electoral
registration in Lewisham between 1 April and 1 June 2016, (36,397), is more than
3 times the increase for the entire canvass period 1 October 2015 to 1 December
2015.

We ask the BCE to acknowledge this exceptional rise in registration in Lewisham
and adopt an approach which reflects it in its calculation of the electoral quota per
constituency.
Population rise
It is beyond doubt that the population of London as a whole is growing. However
the growth in Lewisham is particularly marked. Both the Office for National
Statistics (ONS Sub-National Population Projections 2016) and the Greater
London Authority population projections predict rises in the population of
Lewisham of between 40,000 to 60,000 over the next 15 years. Before the next
parliamentary boundary review, the population is expected to have risen to
between 328,000 (low variant) and 380,000 (high variant). The principal projection
anticipates a rise to 355,000. As at 1 December 2015, the population stood at
298,000. Whichever prediction is closer to the real number, it is so significant that
we submit that the BCE ought to take this into account when deciding between the
options for the Lewisham constituencies.
This population rise is underlined by the scale of development and proposed
development in the 3 constituencies. There is a widespread regeneration
programme under way in Lewisham and Catford town centres, with more planned
for Deptford in the north. Lewisham regularly exceeds its target for new home
completions as set out in the London Plan. Planned development exceeded target
in nine of the last ten years.
Between 3rd January 2015 and 22nd August 2016 our Council Tax schedules show
that the number of domestic properties in Lewisham has increased by 3550, a
trend we expect to continue. By way of example, in Lewisham Deptford, according
to the GLA Population Projections 2016, the Lewisham Central ward is projected to
increase population from 19,870 in 2016 to 24,426 in 2026, a rise of 23% in ten
years, with Evelyn Ward increasing over the same period from 18,862 in 2016 to
27,277 in 2026, a rise of 45%. We suggest that these rises should be reflected in
any consideration of parliamentary boundaries in the 2018 Review.
There is confidence in the resilience and flexibility of future housing land due to the
range and number of sites already planned for future housing, and a high
probability that site developments due will be implemented when forecast. In the
next 5 years alone 8,682 new dwellings are due to be built on 45 sites.
Furthermore there is sufficiently good housing land supply over the next 10 to 15
years to support a total of 17,178 net dwellings to be developed across 78 sites.
The rapidly growing population and relentless drive to build new homes to meet
the London Plan for housing development over the next 10 to 15 years underlines
the importance of getting the base count right now. There is otherwise an inherent
danger that the outcome of the Review will be undermined by changing reality.

Register completeness
The Electoral Commission’s research shows that London Boroughs generally have
lower levels of electoral register completeness than the rest of the country, a
finding they link to the demographic characteristics of the city 1. We submit that
many of these demographic features impact on registration rates in Lewisham
particularly. Each is addressed below with particular reference to Lewisham.
Students and Age
London has substantial problems with its 500,000 Higher Education students (of
which 370,000 are UK residents ) registering on the capital’s 32 electoral registers.
This is because their residence and place of study are spread across the capital.
The majority of students live in private accommodation across the capital rather
than in halls of residents and therefore the pattern of student living reflects the
price/quality of the private rental sector rather than simply the location of the
Universities they attend. Lewisham contains Goldsmiths University with its 8,500
students. But with a large volume of affordable private rented accommodation, we
estimate that the likely student population in Lewisham is well over double this
figure.
In addition our consistent experience in managing our electoral register is that
older cohorts of our residents are much more likely to register than younger
cohorts. Chart 3 below uses the ONS mid year population estimates by age for
Lewisham and England.

This demonstrates that Lewisham has higher than average numbers in the 20 – 44
age group and significantly lower numbers of over 65s.

1

“The December 2015 electoral registers in Great Britain: Accuracy and completeness of the registers in Great
Britain and the transition to Individual Electoral Registration” The Electoral Commission July 2016 p.42

Nationality
The same Electoral Commission research shows that registration among eligible
UK and Irish citizens was 86% complete, compared to 61% for Commonwealth
citizens and 53% for EU citizens2. The ONS annual population survey shows that
in 2015, 10% of Lewisham population were born in the EU compared to only 4.5%
nationally. This is a significant factor which would not be taken into account by use
solely of the 1 December 2015 register.
Ethnicity
Lewisham is proud of the diversity of the local population. In 2013, 47.4% of its
population came from black and minority ethnic groups, which is significantly
higher than the London and Inner London averages (43.1% and 42.5%
respectively). It is clear from the same Electoral Commission research that this
“BAME” heritage group are less likely to register than others. Again reliance solely
on the 1 December 2015 register would ignore this factor.
Tenure
It is widely accepted that high levels of “churn” in the private rented sector in
London give rise to significant issues in trying to maintain an accurate and
complete electoral register. In London some 90,000 households move home a
month: almost two-thirds of these mobile households live in the private rental
sector. One in four of Lewisham’s households live in the private rental sector.
Coupled with the younger profile of Lewisham residents, the “churn” in Lewisham
will mean that those in private rented accommodation are less likely to appear in
the electoral register.
Attitude toward voting
The Electoral Commission has also noted that attitudes to voting have a strong
impact on register completeness. Those less likely to vote are less likely to
register and older voters are more likely to vote than younger. Lewisham’s
population is predominantly young, as shown above. At the EU referendum
turnout in Lewisham was 63.1% compared to the national average of 73.1%.
All of these factors indicate that even in July 2016 the numbers on the electoral roll
in the Lewisham constituencies do not accurately reflect the number of people
living in them who could register to vote. Irrespective of whether they are
registered, we submit that they should all nonetheless be entitled to representation
at a parliamentary level.
In conclusion, we ask the BCE not to rely solely on the 1 December 2015 electoral
roll as the basis for the 2018 parliamentary boundary review. In our view this can
be justified by:



2

the very significant increase in the electoral roll by 1 July 2016;
the marked projected rise in the population over the next ten years; and
the fact that the electoral roll in Lewisham is less complete than elsewhere
as a result of local demography.

Ibid p49

Finally, our recent experience is that a growing proportion of people register in
order to vote when they know that an election is approaching. They do not register
simply to be on the register (as they can reasonably expect to move home in the
next six months). Thus the numbers on our register in December reflect an
atypical and especially low register for Lewisham. I therefore urge the BCE to use
the July 2016 figures to ensure that the people of the three Lewisham
Parliamentary constituencies are fairly represented. It seems that Paragraph 40 of
the BCE’s guidance provides scope to do so as the BCE decides between the
options available for the area.
Yours sincerely,

Barry Quirk CBE BSc PhD FRGS FRSA CiPFA (Hon)
Chief Executive

Electoral registers, 1 December 2015: Local government electors

Lewisham
Bexley
Havering
Hackney
Redbridge
Tower Hamlets
Lambeth
Camden
City of London
Bromley
Richmond upon
Thames
Hillingdon
Sutton
Croydon
Wandsworth
Kingston upon Thames
Islington
Barnet
Greenwich
Hammersmith and
Fulham
Barking and Dagenham
Enfield
Westminster
Haringey
Southwark
Kensington and
Chelsea
Merton
Harrow
Waltham Forest
Hounslow
Newham
Brent
Ealing

E09000023
E09000004
E09000016
E09000012
E09000026
E09000030
E09000022
E09000007
E09000001
E09000006

Total electors
(1/12/15)
180,981
169,018
181,518
162,225
189,350
167,601
210,721
145,378
6,874
232,613

Total electors
(23/6/16)
Change
197,514
16,533
170,779
1,761
183,082
1,564
163,284
1,059
189,843
493
167,820
219
210,800
79
145,425
47
5,987
-887
231,473
-1,140

E09000027
E09000017
E09000029
E09000008
E09000032
E09000021
E09000019
E09000003
E09000011

134,172
194,881
142,472
247,957
222,633
112,220
148,297
228,812
174,946

132,632
193,033
140,288
245,349
219,521
108,838
144,514
223,467
168,967

-1,540
-1,848
-2,184
-2,608
-3,112
-3,382
-3,783
-5,345
-5,979

E09000013
E09000002
E09000010
E09000033
E09000014
E09000028

121,293
123,292
206,858
129,289
159,151
205,046

114,863
115,812
198,387
120,524
150,098
195,875

-6,430
-7,480
-8,471
-8,765
-9,053
-9,171

E09000020
E09000024
E09000015
E09000031
E09000018
E09000025
E09000005
E09000009

92,242
145,665
174,770
175,449
179,447
196,010
211,400
241,937

83,042
136,352
162,397
162,983
165,050
176,985
186,793
212,991

-9,200
-9,313
-12,373
-12,466
-14,397
-19,025
-24,607
-28,946

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 2 in the name of Councillor Walsh to be seconded by Councillor
Hall
n/a
Item No.

Ward

n/a

Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: July 20 2016

Council Notes:
The Government is currently part way through a Parliamentary Boundary Review that
basis it's methodology on elector numbers from December 2015. The Government
ambition has been to reduce the number of MPs to 600.
That controversially the government have based the notional size of constituencies on the
electoral registers from December 2015, which was after the move from household
registrations to individual electoral registrations (IER), has disproportionately affected
inner city areas like Lewisham in making the transition. Millions of voters have gone
missing from the electoral roll.
The independent Electoral Commission did recommended that those on the register
following the General Election in May 2015 should remain on the register until December
2016. The Government ignored that advice.
As examples of impact: the electoral register in Liverpool is down 14,000 from December
2014, Birmingham by 19,000 and Lewisham by 6,000 even when there is an actual
increase in population in these areas.
That registrations to vote increased by 18.6% from December 2015 - placing Lewisham at
the top of the league table in elector growth, and London the largest regional growth with
7%.
Council Believes:
This Governments aspiration has been to reduce both the number of MPs, but shamefully
the number of electors on the electoral roll in a partisan way, by introducing new electoral
procedures, such as individual electoral registrations (IER) that disproportionately
disadvantage inner city areas like Lewisham.
That Lewisham is potentially going to lose one third of its current say in Parliament if the
figures aren't updated in the Boundary Review to reflect these large significant changes.
Council Resolves:
To urgently write to the Boundary Commission to set out our concerns and make clear
that this unprecedented growth, must not be ignored and ask for urgent action to resolve
this issue.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\7\6\ai00014677\$io5dbpe3.doc

For the Mayor to work with the LGA and other affected Local Authority leaders to work to
significantly influence and change the proposals to reflect both the changes in
registrations, but also the partisan structural inequality concerns the process has raised.
To commission a report to return to Full Council that identifies the reasons why so many of
our citizens were not on the electoral roll, and highlight the learning we need to take from
this unprecedented growth in registration, so that we can replicate it again in the future.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\7\6\ai00014677\$io5dbpe3.doc

Council
Report Title

Final Report and Recommendations

Key Decision

No

Ward

All

Contributors

Broadway Theatre Working Party

Class

Part 1

Item No

Date: November 23 2016

1. Purpose of Report
1.1

This report seeks to provide a summary of the findings of the Broadway Theatre
Working Party and present their recommendations.

2. Recommendation
2.1

That the report and recommendations shown below be received and referred to the
Mayor for response in conjunction with the Executive Director for Community
Services.

3. Final Working Party Recommendations that the Mayor be asked to:
1. Recognise the strategic value of the theatre as more than a cultural and heritage hub,
but also as an anchor in Catford’s town centre function, and therefore its importance
to wider regeneration initiatives in the area.
2. Invest in the theatre and ancillary space, so as to its potential as a multi-purpose
broad arts, events and conference space, in-line with the expectations of the
community from the consultation work we have undertaken.
3. Commission officers to develop a robust business case ahead of submitting a bid to
grant makers (National Lottery) that identifies both the capital funding for the project
and ongoing commercial viability of the arts/theatre space, by using complimentary
tertiary services such as food and drink provision to subsidise art activity.
4. Recognise both the hard work of staff working on the current Broadway delivery,
alongside Ian Chalk Architects for their pro-bono support of the project.

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

5. Ensure that key artistic groups, that support the vibrancy of the arts community
across Lewisham, such as Lewisham Youth Theatre, are consulted on any future
activity.
6. Bring forward proposals, and identify the capital funding to invest in the theatre, to
increase not only revenue receipts, but signal to developers and the community the
function of this town centre (entertainment, retail and administration) and crucially our
commitment as a local authority to the area being regenerated.

4. Brief History
4.1

The Broadway Theatre is a Grade II listed building in the heart of Catford. It was built
in 1932 and is an outstanding example of Art Deco design. The magnificent curve of
the building frontage, fascinating gargoyles, imposing, grand main auditorium and
rare Compton theatre organ give the Broadway it’s unique charm.

4.2

The architects were Bradshaw, Gass and Hope; the gothic features were intended to
reflect the adjacent gothic revival town hall which has since been demolished. The
Broadway was originally built as a multi-purpose civic hall for activities including
dancing and wrestling. The Broadway Theatre now has a main auditorium with a
capacity of 800 seats and a 80 seat studio theatre.

4.3

The Borough was once blessed with an array of theatres including Matcham’s
wonderful Lewisham Hippodrome (demolished 1958) and the equally grand New
Cross Empire (demolished 1954). In addition the borough used to boast several
cinemas all of which have long closed and most of the buildings have also been
demolished. The Broadway Theatre is the only of these imposing buildings that
remains and is very important to the cultural heritage of the borough.

4.4

In 1999 the theatre underwent a £2million refurbishment but 75% of the investment
was needed for major remedial works including a full rewiring and new roof. The only
structural alterations were the creation of the Broadway Bar and a new box office. In
addition new carpets were installed, the foyers redecorated and bars and toilets
refurbished. Funding was not available to tackle the challenging and complex needs
surrounding the backstage area or the interiors of the two auditoria.

5. The Building

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

5.1

Since the 1999 refurbishment there has been no significant investment in the building.
The combination of the 1930s design of the building not meeting modern standards
and the deterioration of some aspects of the building mean that the Broadway needs
investment in a number of areas detailed below.

5.2

Get in – the Broadway was not designed with the needs of modern
productions in mind. All equipment and sets have to be manually lifted from the street
up a flight of steep steps and then further manual lifting is required to bring items to
stage level. This is not an acceptable system for frequent use and needs to be
addressed in order for the venue to continue to attract hirers.

5.3

Seating – the auditoria seating is very uncomfortable and falls well short of current
theatre seating standards. Today’s building standards recommends a minimum row
spacing of 86cm whereas the circle seating is only 68cm. Seating widths are also
well below minimum standards. As an historic building the Broadway is legally
allowed to continue to operate with these restrictions but should any alterations be
made the council would be required to ensure that the current standards are met.
When the venue was built the main auditorium did not have raked seating. A
retractable rake was subsequently installed to improve audience sight lines but still
allow the auditorium to be cleared for other functions. In practice the rake has
become predominantly fixed as it is very labour intensive to move in and out and the
workings are old and unreliable.

5.4

Catford Complex – the Broadway Theatre is conjoined to Town Hall Chambers and
the theatre rehearsal room is part of the chambers building. The theatre also shares
some plant with the Civic Suite. These interdependencies need to be taken into
consideration in planning for the building’s future.

5.5

Water Penetration in the basement – the theatre has suffered repeated flooding in the
basement and lower foyers which has caused damage to those areas leaving them
unattractive and below the decorative standard that you would expect in a public
facility. A solution to this repeat flooding is needed and the areas to be brought back
to an acceptable standard.

5.6

Other considerations – there are a couple of other areas that would benefit from
improvements. The first is the Studio Theatre. With only 80 seats this auditoria is
intimate and a good venue for small scale community based activity or more
experimental work but the number of seats make it very difficult to break even on
productions. A remodelling of the studio to increase the capacity would be beneficial.
The studio currently does not have any projection equipment so is unable to show
films which the auditorium size would be well suited to. The second limitation is the

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

lack of kitchen facilities. The Broadway has no commercial kitchen and is therefore
not able to prepare hot food on the premises limiting options for catering and the
feasibility of the café.
6. Recent Minor Works and Improvements
6.1

6.2
6.3

Over the past 12 months the Broadway Theatre has benefited from new sound and
lighting systems that meet industry standards and are easier for visiting technicians to
use.
The Gallery, studio foyer and green room have been re-plastered and redecorated.
The main auditorium roof has been repaired as well as the ornate plasterwork which
has also been tested to ensure that it meets safety requirements.

7. Condition Surveys
7.1

7.2

7.3
7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

In November 2015 Frankham Consultancy Group undertook a survey of the condition
of the internal and external fabric and mechanical and electrical components of the
theatre. The survey was undertaken on a visual basis only. It is noted that the
building was opened in 1932 and retains many original features which have now
reached or exceeded their service life and are beyond economical repair.
The summary report from this survey is attached at appendix 1. The full survey with
appendices was made available to members of the working party in early January
2016.
The summary of costs include suggested essential works in the region of £530,000
over the next two years.
The condition surveys only looked at the fabric of the current building and did not
address costs involved in improvements required for the future operation of the
theatre such as get-in and seating. Quotes for undertaking these improvements are
needed.
The report agrees that the heating system requires further, detailed consideration to
enable independent operation prior to the closure of the Old Town Hall where the
boiler(s) are currently sited.
Although there are numerous items listed for short-term attention, a number of these
are of a cosmetic nature. The more substantial items such as roof and window
repairs will need to be programmed in together to make the most efficient use of
extensive and expensive scaffolding. Consideration will also need to be given to the
timing of the works in relation to the impact on the theatre programme.
The exact capital requirements for the theatre over the next two years are still to be
fully determined but it is reasonable to assume that they could be in the region of
£2million when the full cost of roof repairs, heating system and operational
improvements are considered. This is beyond the scope of the council’s capital

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

4

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

programme and will require investment from other sources. An allocation from the
capital programme has been made to enable the further studies that are required to
be undertaken and some short term remedial works.
8. Access Audit
8.1
8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

David Bonnett Associates (DBA) was appointed in June 2016 to carry out an audit of
the Broadway Theatre and an overview of access provisions in the Chambers.
The report identifies obstacles to access for all users of the building and provides
recommendations for solutions. The Chambers part of the building was also assessed
in case solutions for the theatre can be enabled by combining or reconfiguring areas
of this part of the building.
Both the theatre and the adjacent Chambers comprise aspects that create barriers or
difficulties for patrons, performers, and staff. Some of these difficulties are mitigated
through management strategies, however, both buildings have the potential to
become more inclusive / accessible. Some of the improvements required are
relatively minor and inexpensive while others will require more extensive works.
Several issues were identified as needing to be resolved as soon as possible to
ensure safety and comfort of patrons, performers and staff. These include the
removal of misleading signage; removal of items from egress routes; and the
replacement of the theatre’s platform lift, which is unreliable.
Other changes, although less urgent, are important and should be made a high
priority. At present there is no step-free access to the auditorium stage or to backstage facilities which will need to be addressed. As well as Wheelchair spaces within
the auditorium given that the two existing wheelchair spaces are not sufficient to meet
current guidance.
The access audit has also highlighted a number of actions for consideration as part of
major refurbishment that would provide the opportunity to resolve issues and make
improvements for both the theatre and the Chambers.

9. Outline Designs
9.1

The Broadway Theatre Working Party considered some outline designs that were
provided by pro-bono architect Ian Chalk. These looked at some options for
addressing the limitations outlined in Section 3 above and provided some useful food
for thought.

10. Consultation

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

5

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

10.1

A public consultation was undertaken to gathers residents and theatre users’ views
about the Broadway Theatre. There were 805 responses to the consultation. The
public consultation on the Broadway Theatre demonstrated that despite its limitations
the theatre is held in high regard by its users. Respondents were looking for a wide
array of uses including, theatre, film, live music, restaurant, bars and community
events.

11. Current Programme
11.1

The Broadway Theatre is currently run by just two full time staff and an annual
revenue budget of £278k (£106k operating subsidy from Community Services and
£172k building running costs from Regeneration).

11.2

The Broadway Theatre Development Programme is now receiving project
management support from the wider Catford Regeneration Programme to undertake
this work. Once costs have been fully determined, and an agreed initial budget
allocated from the Catford Regeneration Programme fund, priority will be given to
making the following improvements where feasible:








Improved bar and catering offer
Cosmetic improvements to public areas and areas used by artistes
works outlined in the condition surveys i.e. roof, windows, heating system
improved get in access for main auditorium productions
improvement to seating in main auditorium
Access improvements highlighted by the audit
Installation of digital film projector in main auditorium

Further options to be considered subject to cost are:




Improvements to studio theatre to increase seating capacity and sight lines
Extending stage for main auditorium
Development of spaces within Town Hall Chambers
Other funding sources, such as Heritage Lottery Funding are being investigated to
help pay for the refurbishment, as it is unlikely that the funds from the
Regeneration Programme will be sufficient to cover all the above works.

11.3

The highlights for the year include the remarkable and new “Catford upon Avon”, a
celebration of the 400th anniversary of Shakespeare’s death. For this the Broadway
and its new resident theatre company – Action to the Word – developed a very
successful, high quality programme that included shows, talks, workshops and other

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

6

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

activities. Among other initiatives, the programme included a modern twist on A
Midsummer Night’s Dream, a fabulous Othello directed by the award-winning Pamela
Sherman, workshops with the Royal Shakespeare Company and the Hip Hop
Shakespeare Company, and a free workshop hosted by director and writer Jeremy
Sams.
11.4

In September the theatre hosted the Catford Free Film Festival and a
commemoration of the Battle of the Somme – part of the Somme100 project in
partnership with the Lewisham Archives. It participated in Black History Month in
October, and has in store an evening of music and seasonal celebration in a
Christmas concert supporting the work of breast and prostate cancer charities.

12. Broadway Theatre Development Programme
12.1

The deliberations of the Broadway Theatre Working Party led to a set of principles for
any future Development plans for the Broadway Theatre:










12.2

Respect the art deco building and retain its historic charm whilst enabling the
venue to meet expectations of artists and audiences.
Improve access for disabled people.
Ensure that the Theatre remains rooted in its local community and can respond to
local audiences and users.
Provide a cultural destination in the heart of a regenerated Catford Town Centre.
Develop the bar and café offer to increase earned income and provide a safe, high
quality, social venue.
Enable a flexible main auditorium space with retractable seating that can
accommodate a mixed programme of live performance, community events and
films.
Retain the studio theatre with a focus on theatre productions including youth
theatre events.
Support additional income streams through bringing into use under-utilised spaces
in the building and exploring the potential for additional use of Town Hall
Chambers.

The Broadway Theatre Development Programme is now receiving project
management support from the wider Catford Regeneration Programme to undertake
this work. Currently it is anticipated that the programme will include:



works outlined in the condition surveys i.e. roof, windows, heating system
improved get in access for main auditorium productions

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

7

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT







improvement to seating in main auditorium
Cosmetic improvements to public areas and areas used by artistes
Improved bar and catering offer
Access improvements highlighted by the audit
Installation of digital film projector in main auditorium

Other options to be considered subject to cost:



12.3

Improvements to studio theatre to increase seating capacity and sight lines
Extending stage for main auditorium
Development of spaces within Town Hall Chambers

The development principles that were an outcome of the work of the Broadway
Theatre working party and the scope of the programme outlined in 12.1 and 12.2
above have provided an essential framework for officers to take the Broadway
Theatre Development Programme forward. Since the working party’s final meeting
work has commenced on:
 Minor works programme to address items identified in the access audit that
require immediate attention and small scale items that will improve the
operational efficiency of the venue in the short term.
 Commissioning of a conservation plan to inform Heritage Lottery bid and any
planned alterations to the fabric of the building.
 Marketing of café/bar operation to identify a commercial partner to work with
the council and open up the Broadway Theatre café as a destination in its own
right.
 Identifying solutions and costs for get in and main auditorium seating
improvements.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Broadway Theatre Working Group Minutes available online
Summary of the Condition Survey attached
If you have any queries on this report, please contact Sarah Assibey, Committee Support
Officer on 0208 314 8975

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

8

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

CONDITION REPORT
ON

BUILDING FABRIC
MECHANICAL AND
ELECTRICAL SERVICS

AT

BROADWAY THEATRE,
CATFORD ROAD,
LONDON, SE6 4RU

FOR
PREPARED BY:
FRANKHAM CONSULTANCY GROUP LIMITED
BUSINESS ESTATE MAIDSTONE ROAD SIDCUP

LONDON BOROUGH IRENE HOUSE FIVE ARCHES
OF LEWISHAM
LAURENCE HOUSE
1 CATFORD ROAD

KENT DA14 5AE

TELEPHONE:

020 8309 7777

LONDON FAX:

020 8309 7890

SE6 4RU
PROJECT REF:

X: 226179

ISSUE DATE:

23 DECEMBER 2015 FILE REF:

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

9

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

STATUS:

CLIENT ISSUE

Document Control
This document is CONTROLLED at the point of issue, thereafter readers should confirm that they have the
current Revision prior to relying upon the contents.
Issue Record
Issue

Date

Comments

1

23 December 2015

Client Issue

Date

Comments

Amendments
Issue

REPORT ACCREDITATION

Report completed by
I confirm that I have completed the required inspections
in accordance with the instruction as fully as was
possible and that the data collected has been accurately
and completely transferred to this Report.

Name : James Walker BSc (hons)
Signature:

Date : 23 December 2015

Report checked by
This document has been checked for core accuracy and
compliance with the purchase order and is approved for
release to London
Borough of Lewisham

Name : Steven Bull BSc(Hons) MRICS

Signature:

Date : 23 December 2015

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

10

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

Accepted for London Borough of
Lewisham by

Name :

Signature :

Date :
CONTENTS

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

PROJECT BRIEF

LIMITATIONS OF SURVEY

CONDITION REPORT

CONDITION INSPECTION

7.0

8.0

9.0

SUMMARY OF BUILDING CONDITION

COST ANALYSIS

STATUTORY CONSULTATION

10.0 CONCLUSION

APPENDIX A
APPENDIX B

Condition Report: Data Capture and Budget Costs
Budget Cost Summary

APPENDIX C
APPENDIX D

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

Priority Grading and Condition Codes
Annotated plans for condition report referencing

11

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

1.0

APPENDIX E

FCG Electrical Installation Condition Report

APPENDIX F

FCG Mechanical Installation Condition Report

Introduction

1.1 Frankham Consultancy Group (FCG) has been appointed by London Borough of Lewisham to undertake a
condition survey of the building fabric and assets.
1.2 Instructions were received from London Borough of Lewisham to proceed on 21 October 2015, based on FCG’s
Fee Proposal and Service Schedule dated 8 October 2015.

2.0
2.1

Background Information
Broadway Theatre (also known as Lewisham Theatre) is a purpose built concert
hall constructed in the 1930s and has received Grade II listed status in 1993. The location of the
theatre is North of Culvery Green Conservation Area situated centrally within Catford on the South
Circular Road (A21).

2.2

The facility consists of the building set over three floors and includes a basement area. There are the
main concert hall, studio theatre, coffee shop, offices, storage areas and associated non public areas
incorporating the heating and electrical service areas.

2.3

The coffee shop area as we understand was refurbished in 2005 bringing facilities up to standards
prevailing at that time.

2.4

An Asbestos Management Survey Report was provided prior to the survey being undertaken.

3.0
3.1

4.0

Project Brief
The Project Brief was as stated on F. Crossley’s email dated 1 October 2015. This required FCG to
undertake a full condition survey and provide a written report itemising repair and replacement costs
together with photographic schedules, to internal and external fabric items and mechanical and
electrical components.

Limitations of Survey and Report

4.1

Our survey inspection was undertaken on a visual basis only. No opening up works was undertaken
during our inspections. We have not been instructed to conduct a full building survey. Any defects
and/ or apparent structural issues should be investigated further.

4.2

Our instruction was limited to public and non public areas of the building and areas that were locked
were made available on request at the time of survey.

5.0

Condition Report

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

12

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

5.1

FCG conducted a full condition survey of all accessible areas, including building fabric components and
mechanical and electrical installations to ascertain the condition of the building and establish the
works required with annotated plans
providing reference to the areas and their current condition. Appendix D provides annotated plans to
reference the location of the condition survey results.

5.2

Appendix A contains a full summary of the Condition Report: Data Capture and Budget Costs.

5.3

FCG have provided outline details of the condition of each building and M&E components, stating its
anticipated installation date and life expectancy. We have then generated budget costs for the repair/
replacement of each component/installation where appropriate, based on the life expectancy
duration, and have itemised costs for each within designated Year Bands between the next 1-10 Year
period, with year bands ranges being Year 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6-10.

5.4

The method of condition reporting has been indicated on the Condition Assessment sheet. This states
the Priority Grading and Condition Codes for building fabric items and mechanical and electrical
installations (Appendix B).

5.5

The costs stated are for budget purposes only based on our expectation of likely repair, replacement
and upgrade costs. Consideration has been given to the potential additional costs for asbestos
removal to areas highlighted and in conjunction with the management level asbestos report.
However, we would recommend that LBL have a full Refurbishment and Demolition Survey
undertaken for a thorough intrusive survey and testing of all components confirming asbestos based
materials. This will enable the true extent of all possible asbestos present to be identified and costs
for the removal/ encapsulation can be made accordingly.

6.0

Condition Survey Inspection

6.1

Following instruction by London Borough of Lewisham, internal access was gained with the support of
Carmel O’Connor (Building Manager). FCG undertook their surveys on Wednesday 11 November 2015.
The inspection was a visual inspection only, with no intrusive investigations being undertaken.

7.0

Summary of Building Condition

7.1

General Condition

7.1.1

The building appears to have retained a substantial amount of its original features, with the main
entrance and public areas in particular, being honest to the listing status of the building.

7.1.2

Externally, the building has retained almost all of its original features, with the stone work and metal
framed windows appearing to be original. The fire exits are chained internally and appear to require
substantial maintenance to provide adequate security to the building as well as ensuring appropriate
egress routes. This could be a potential breach of regulations that govern egress out of a building in an
emergency.

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

13

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

7.1.3

7.2

The recommended actions within the Asbestos Management Survey Report appear to have been
undertaken to the plant room and service areas. This will need to be verified however with an R&D
Survey.

Structure (including stairs)

7.2.1

Lewisham Theatre appears to be of solid concrete construction with internal walls being made of
block/ brickwork. The assumed construction is in keeping with the construction methods of the
period.

7.2.2

It was noted that there were minor structural issues in localised areas mainly to the wall beneath the
stage facing the changing rooms, and is assumed that they do not provide any detriment to the
building; the areas are noted within the schedule of condition for internal areas. As the structure is
mainly covered over with the finishes, it is difficult to comment further. It was noted that shear style
cracking was found at high level on the wall that faces Dressing Rooms 1 and 2 to the plaster and
painted finish. Further investigations should be undertaken to determine the cause and provide the
appropriate remedy.

7.3

Wall/ Ceiling/ Floor substrates

7.3.1

The wall and ceiling substrates are predominantly of a plaster finish, with the exception being the
exposed corridor to the projection room, where it is assumed to be of a rendered finish. Overall the
plaster is of good condition except where there is high traffic both public and movement of fittings
(such as seating).

7.3.2

The abrasions and parts missing will be easily remedied and are extensive across the low levels of the
walls. The plaster to the ceiling is generally in good condition with localised areas (as noted within the
condition survey) that require attention following episodes of water ingress/ condensation.

7.3.3

The main area of concern in respect of the plaster is in the basement on the external walls at the
junction where the borrowed lights/ gas vents are located. Further investigations are required to
determine the cause of the moisture damage to these areas to remove the existing defect; though the
works required will be similar in nature to make good to the defective area.

7.3.4

The floor substrate is assumed to be a screed, though this could not be evidenced due to the floor
coverings in place. There was no visible evidence of any deterioration to the substrate for the floor
areas.

7.4

Internal wall and ceiling finishes

7.4.1

The wall finishes vary dependent on the intended use of the room. The entrance and foyer areas are
predominantly stone finish. As expected with the hard wearing finish, the general condition was
good.

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

14

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

7.4.2

The painted finish of the walls was variable dependent on the location. The high
levels of the walls within the basement at the junction with the borrowed lights/ gas vents show
significant signs of deterioration. The low level areas of the walls in high traffic areas showed
significant signs of impact damage.

7.4.3

The general age of the painted surfaces is viewed as being more than 8 years old and should be
considered for redecoration as part of the cyclical maintenance programme to ensure the relevant
standards to ensure safe egress from the building by minimising the potential risk of spread of fire.
The damage to the decorations will have had an impact on this issue. Full redecorations have been
considered the appropriate method to meet the requirements.

7.4.4

The timber panelling within the auditorium was in good condition. Consideration should be given to
the cyclical maintenance and decoration to the timber finish to ensure integrity is maintained for the
egress routes.

7.4.5

The ceilings in general were of a good standard, except for the indentified localised areas. The ceiling
of the long corridor from the coffee shop lobby to the management offices shows that the lining
paper has lost adhesion and is in a poor state. This should be attended to as a matter of urgency.

7.4.6

The inlay tile system for the ceilings, as identified, were in good condition generally and require
ongoing maintenance and repairs as recorded.

7.4.7

The ceilings in the basement are generally in a fair condition, but with some areas showing significant
deterioration with the paint flaking.

7.4.8

The store room in the basement requires additional ventilation to remove the build up of excess
moisture so that the formation of mould and damage to the walls is minimised. The extract fan in the
store was switched off at the time of the survey.

7.4.9

The tiled walls in the cloakrooms were generally in fair condition. There was a substantial area of
missing tiles in the Studio Foyer male cloakroom which should be attended to as a matter of urgency
to prevent further damage occurring.

7.5

Floor Finishes

7.5.1

The stone flooring, as expected, is a hard wearing surface and was generally in fair condition. It was
noted that there were localised areas of cracking that travelled across the corridors, and typically
would be attributable to a lack of expansion cracks allowed when originally laid.

7.5.2

Generally the carpeted areas were in fair condition. Areas where there has been damage to the
carpet had been attended to with the use of heavy duty tape. This type of repair is not seen as a
suitable method of maintaining the carpet and minimising trips. There were a number of carpeted
staircases that had not received suitable nose coverings and demonstrate a significant trip hazard to
those with sight impairment and physical mobility issues. It is expected that as the carpet ages the
number of repairs will increase. A sensible approach to repairs and maintenance must be considered
with the carpet being replaced when it becomes uneconomical to repair.

7.5.3

Timber flooring in the main auditorium showed signs of damage that require attention before it
becomes a trip hazard.

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

15

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

7.5.4

The sheet vinyl finish to the wet areas was in fair condition overall. Regular inspection and
maintenance is required to attend to the arising repair obligations.

7.5.5

Painted surfaces are generally worn where there is high traffic, most notably on the stairwells to
either side of the stage and the seating area within the dress circle. The worn finish provides a
smoother surface to that of the painted finish and increases the potential for slips and falls and should
be considered a priority to minimise claims.

7.6

Cloakroom facilities

7.6.1

Generally the cloakrooms were in fair condition. The welfare facilities for performers was generally
older than the public facilities but in serviceable order. The Studio Foyer facilities appear to have
received a facelift; with the facilities servicing the coffee shop being approximately 10 years old.

7.6.2

The washbasins, WC pan and cisterns were all serviceable, ongoing maintenance of high level cisterns
may become uneconomical to maintain with age.

7.6.3

The partitions between the WCs appear modern with wear and tear noted that is not out of the
ordinary. Regular inspection and maintenance will be required.

7.7

Dressing Rooms

7.7.1

There are several dressing/ store rooms that surround the stage below and to the
side on different floors. Whilst the use of the rooms varies, the general condition appears consistent
with the current use. The current condition is similar to that of the corridors that surround the
auditorium and require attention to the painted finish and plaster work. Consideration should also be
given to the carpet to these rooms.

7.8

Auditorium

7.8.1

7.9

The auditorium retains many original features and is in keeping with the listed status. Reports were
received from Carmel O’Connor of outstanding repairs following a water leak to the ornate mouldings
to the wall. There is evidence that the repairs are still outstanding and should be considered a priority
to ensure the safety of patrons from any falling material. The seating appears to be maintained and
regular inspection and repairs will be ongoing.
Fire doors and fire exit doors

7.9.1

We were unable to determine whether the doors met current requirements and further undertakings
are required to ensure they meet current standards.

7.9.2

The fire exit doors were all chained and padlocked internally, which causes us concern that they are
not fit for purpose and require repairs and maintenance to ensure that they provide adequate security
as well as ease of egress in case of an emergency. A review of the fire plan should also be undertaken
to ensure that the current risk has been assessed, by way of a Fire Risk Assessment.

7.9.3

The Council should satisfy themselves that the current arrangement fully satisfies means of escape
regulations for continuing safe use of the theatre

7.10

Electrical Installations
X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

16

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

7.10.1
7.11

Refer to Appendix E for full Summary Condition Report.
Mechanical Installations

7.11.1
7.12

Refer to Appendix F for full Summary Condition Report.
External Masonry

7.12.1

The external masonry is generally in good condition. Localised areas require attention mainly at low
levels. The main entrance to the theatre will require more attention due to the vegetation growth
and staining that has been noted. The masonry to the rear of the building in the car park area is
showing signs of expansion cracking and further investigations will be required to ascertain the cause
of the damage as well as establishing a suitable remedy.

7.12.2

The ornate reliefs and items noted within the listing status of the building are generally in good
condition.

7.12.3

Consideration should be given to additional funds being set aside for any additional repairs required
to the masonry should scaffold be erected and close inspection of the masonry to determine the
volume of repair works needed. This should include the possible repairs to the heraldic reliefs and
ornate architecture at higher levels of the main facade of the building.

7.13

Windows and glazing

7.13.1

The windows are in keeping with the age and design of the building and appear to not have received
cyclical decorations of 5 yearly periods as expected.

7.13.2

Internal inspections and external (from ground level) found that the metal framed (Crittal style)
windows are in fair condition and will require servicing and maintenance as well as being redecorated.
Due to the high costs of scaffolding to undertake these works, taking the frames back to metal and
undertaking the necessary repairs will provide the most economically advantageous method of
ensuring longevity to the windows. Costs shown against the windows have included for scaffold
access.

7.14

Roof coverings

7.14.1

In the main the roof is as stated in the listed status of the building, with a pitched tiled roof covering
to the main building and projections. The roof covering has a life expectancy of 50+ years and there
are signs that it is coming to the end of its serviceable life.

7.14.2

It was noted that there are slipped, damaged and missing tiles as well as tangs in place to support tiles
that have previously slipped. The covering has a build up of lichen/ moss that support the age and
condition of the tiles. Costs have been allowed for a full roof replacement to coincide with the cyclical
decorations and repairs to the windows to maximise the use of the scaffold with its incumbent high
costs.

7.14.3

The asphalt walkways to the inside of the roof pitch show signs of slumping and have recently
received a liquid coating to provide weather protection.

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

17

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

Consideration should also be given to the replacement of the asphalt walkways at the same time as
the roof covering.
7.15

Rain water goods and box gutters

7.15.1

The vertical rain water pipes appear to be the original installation with some hoppers having the year
of manufacturer cast into them. Overall, these are in fair condition with the downpipes near the main
theatre entrance being in the worst condition. The previously painted metal pipe work requires
redecoration.

7.15.2

The box gutters provide the surface water runoff from the pitched roof to the downpipes and are
hidden behind the top part of the wall that can be seen from the street level. Vegetation can be seen
from street level at some locations and is indicative of a build up of silt and debris where the falls may
not be adequate.

7.15.3

The box gutters will require clearing out and any repairs identified at this time will need to be
undertaken immediately to prevent water penetration into the building. The damage found to the
side of the main theatre entrance as well as apparent water damage to the high level ceilings to the
foyer stair case and adjacent stairwells could be attributed to the potential blockages to these areas.

8.0

Cost Analysis

8.1 Along with the condition survey, budget costs have been allowed for the repair and maintenance as well as
replacement of the identified elements within the condition survey findings (Appendix A).
8.2 A cost analysis based on the total budget costs as generated within the condition survey summary sheets
between the year bands 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6-10 (refer to Appendix C), may be summarised as follows,
including mechanical and electrical costs, and also the overall extra over cost of the
alteration/conversion works (refer to Table 1 on page 12).
8.3 Our budget costs have allowed to bring the building up to a higher standard of repairs part of London Borough
of Lewisham’s strategic view of regeneration to the area. Table 1 below has allowed for foreseeable
works to the building fabric and elements and is set out in 3 phases. Year 1- 2 has been smoothed for
budgeting and allowed for works to be undertaken as a priority and inclusion of works being brought
forward to maximise economies of scale (use of scaffolding).
8.4 Years 3 to 5 has allowed to undertake works that is required but not essential at this time along with repairs
and maintenance to elements that has not been viewed as essential as well as the replacement of
elements. Years 6- 10 for ongoing maintenance and elements that will require replacement that is
not viewed as essential at this time along with replacement of elements that are not detrimental to
the building at this time.
8.5 All costs are based on Year1 of the Budget Cost Summary (Appendix B) and have not included for professional
fees, VAT, or inflation. Costs should be reviewed annually and revised as necessary
8.6

Year1-2 budget costs

8.6.1 Due to the high costs of scaffolding, it has been viewed that all works reliant on suitable access externally,
have been brought into this category to maximise the use of scaffolding and minimise the incumbent
cost of accessing high levels in
X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

18

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWAY THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

future years. The budget costs are indicative only and closer inspection at high levels will be required
to firm up the scope and potential cost of works.
8.6.2 Included within the Mechanical and Electrical items are those elements that require immediate attention
and has been smoothed to provide economy of scale and continuity for the use of the building.
8.6.3 In summary the condition survey has resulted in essential works to the building totalling £530,000. Table 1
on page 12 provides the budget cost summary for the condition survey output of works.

8.7

Year 3-5 budget costs

8.7.1 The works included in this section are for required works deemed not essential for the use of the building at
this time. If the works are not undertaken within the time period it is expected that the risk of failure
increases which will increase future maintenance costs as well as the overall repair costs indicated.
8.7.2 In Summary the condition survey has resulted in required works to the building totalling £82,250.
8.8

Year 6-10 budget costs

8.8.1 Non essential works as well as routine maintenance costs of £390,915.00 should be budgeted for in this
phase.

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

19

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWATER THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

London Borough of Lewisham
Broadway Theatre Condition Survey Table 1 Budget Cost
Summary

Maintenance / Replacement Cost
YEAR 1

YEAR 2

YEAR 3

YEAR 4

YEAR 5

YEARS 6-10

£84,240.00

£75,450.00

£1,750.00

£9,250.00

£2,650.00

£6,400.00

£14,950.00

£43,000.00

£750.00

£9,050.00

£1,500.00

£75,700.00

SUMMARY TOTALS MECHANICAL SERVICES

£28,600.00

£12,250.00

£0.00

£0.00

£0.00

£215,050.00

SUMMARY TOTALS FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICES

£71,630.00

£45,750.00

£1,950.00

£5,300.00

£10,930.00

£93,765.00

TOTAL COSTS

£199,420.00

£176,450.00

£4,450.00

£23,600.00

£15,080.00

£390,915.00

SUMMARY TOTAL FOR INTERNAL BUILDING
FABRIC COMPONENTS
SUMMARY TOTAL FOR EXTERNAL BUILDING FABRIC COMPONENTS

Smoothing of work for budgeting
TOTAL COST OF WORKS (AS ABOVE)
Asbestos removal (Provisional and subject to R&D Survey)
SUB TOTAL
ALLOW 5% CONTINGENCY FOR UNFORESEEN WORKS

£375,870.00

£43,250.00

£50,000.00

£20,000.00

£4265,000.00

£63,250.00

£21,300.00

£3,250.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWATER THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

TOTAL
ADD FOR CONTRACTOR OH&P (@ 6%)

£447,500.00

£66,500.00

£27,000.00

£5,250.00

ADD FOR CONTRACTOR PRELIMINARIES (@ 12%)

£52,500.00

£10,500.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST OF WORKS (EXC. VAT)

£530,000.00

£82,250.00

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

12

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWATER THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

9.0

Statutory Consultations

9.1 Due to the listed status of the building the relevant planning approval and listed building consent, along
with English Heritage consultation will need to be granted prior to undertaking works to the
building. Proposals, including structural works, services alterations and fire precautions will also
require approval under the Building Regulations 2010.
9.2 The undertaking of the electrical works is not perceived as requiring the statutory undertaker (UK Power
Networks) involvement, as the incoming electrical service head has been replaced with all
recommended works being on the client side.
9.3 The undertaking of the mechanical works is not perceived as requiring the statutory undertakers
involvement, as the recommended works are on the client side. Consideration for consultation
with the statutory undertakers maybe necessary should London Borough of Lewisham move
forward with the option of installing a dedicated heating plant system for the theatre in the
medium to long term.

10.0

Conclusion

10.1 Lewisham Theatre has retained many of its original features as described in the listing status and it is of
significant importance that these are retained and suitably maintained for the life of the building.
Elements of the building have reached or exceeded their serviceable life and are now beyond
economical repair, as such the condition survey results provides a breakdown of works that are
essential to be undertaken within the next 1-2 years, required works in 3-5 years, as well as
planned works in 6- 10 years.
10.2 A standardised assessment of condition has been used to ascertain the assumed year of installation along
with an acceptable life span to determine which elements require attention and when these
should be attended to as part of planned and cyclical maintenance.
10.3 The project brief was to consider the current condition of the building and provide a proposal for London
Borough of Lewisham to consider as part of a strategic regeneration of the local area and be
considerate to the value to building provides the local community in terms of community,
visibility, and aesthetics.
10.4 On considering the scope of expected works to Lewisham Theatre, the planned approach and smoothing
of works to provide an estimated budget has been undertaken and provides clear presentation of
the works required in the immediate, short term and medium term of the building.
10.5 The option of the Theatre installing its own dedicated heating system in the medium to long term which
can be operated when the council office are shut should be considered. The budget cost for the
heating system would be in the region of £250-350K based upon industry standard costs.
However, due to the complexity of the existing installation and listed status of the building these

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWATER THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

costs could increase and would be subject to a separate detailed Feasibility Study should this
option require further consideration.

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

13

10.6 Consideration should be given to the building’s electrical installation services receiving a full electrical test
& inspection. Based on the subsequent results the installation can be reviewed and circuits
designed and altered accordingly. All final distribution circuits should then be identified accurately
as to the service it serves, supported by relevant documentation.
10.7 Further tests and inspection should be undertaken with all actions being completed so the the
distribution boards supplying final circuit have residual current circuit breakers throughout the
building. This would provide additional shock protection to users & occupants of building as well as
allowing electrical services to comply with latest recommendations of BS: 7671.
10.8 There were no issues found with the building that present a significant risk to the longevity of use, though
there are large elements within the building (roof and windows) that will require significant costs
to ensure it maintains a weather tight envelope to protect the original features within the building.
10.9 We have set out our analysis of costs for essential works (1-2 years) and have included for associated
access costs, and included for assumed additional cost for any associated asbestos removal
required.

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM
BROADWATER THEATRE CONDITION SURVEY REPORT

X: 226179-FCG-BS-REPORT-FIN-V0.1
23 DECEMBER 2015

14

Catford Broadway : Sketchbook No. 4
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Jan 2016
Dear Sir/Madam

Ian Chalk
Ian Chalk Architects
1 Cedars Close
SE13 5DP

Broadway Theatre, Catford
The enclosed pages are a record of the presentation to the Sustainability Development Committee at
Lewisham Civic Suite on Thursday 14th January 2016.
The content is an edited extract of a feasibility study which was generated over the past 10 months.
The report describes a collection of thoughts for refurbishing The Broadway Theatre in Catford - and
are a summary to a number of conversations (and enthusiastic building tours) with Martin Costello, The
Theatres Artistic Director (now retired).
The proposals enclosed have been presented to the key Statutory Consultees: Historic England and The
Theatres Trust. Both bodies support the key moves within the proposals, with the finer details needing
further clarification in due course.
The proposals are in many ways quite pragmatic and seek to resolve some of the design flaws within the
existing building and offer the theatre a more promising future.
The options for improvements to the building can be treated in isolation, or as a package.
They are developed with economy in mind, as the budget for any scheme has not yet been defined.
The building is Grade II listed and we have been mindful of the buildings significant parts within all of the
proposals.
This sketchbook is intended as a discussion piece, to assist in: Ongoing conversations, Applications for
funding and (possibly) Integration into the wider Catford Area Action Plan - and other masterplan reports
which may supersede it.
This sketchbook should be read in conduction with other briefing memos prepared by the theatre, which
identify essential ongoing repairs to the building.
Everything in this sketchbook to date, has been undertaken on a pro-bono basis, by Ian Chalk and Edward
Whiteley of Ian Chalk Architects, and with additional input from Conservationist friends at Alan Baxters.
We are based at Farringdon in central London, but I live off Belmont Hill in Lewisham, so have a vested
interest in making a meaningful contribution to the area.
We look forward to the opportunity to continue this discussion.
Yours faithfully
Ian Chalk
Ian Chalk RIBA
Ian Chalk Architects
70 Cowcross Street
London
EC1M 6EJ

Introduction

0203 7807355
07785 973723
web: ianchalkarchitects.com

reen
ey G
Rush

Catford Broadway

y
wa

rd

d
oa
Br

tfo

rd
atfo

d
Roa

C

Rushey

Catford Road

Green

Ca

Existing location plan
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Dressing
room

Dressing
room

Office

Box office

Office

Auditorium

lift

Cafe/bar

Foyer
Bar

Vestibule

Existing ground floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Boiler
room
Dressing
room

Store
Vent
room

Store
Tea
point
Store
Dressing
room
Store

Store

Store

Studio
theatre

Chair
store

Dressing
room

Dressing
room
Gallery

Foyer
Bar

Existing lower-ground floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Stage

Offices

Auditorium

Rehearsal
area
Foyer

Existing first floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Over stage

Offices

Auditorium
Offices

Offices

Dress
circle

Existing second floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Plant room
Fly tower
Offices

Offices

Auditorium
Tea room

Offices
Offices

Projection
room

Existing third floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Organ chamber

Existing fourth floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Fly
tower

Plant
room

Projection
room

Circle
Foyer

Auditorium
Stage
Foyer

Stalls

Catford
Road

Catford
Broadway
Foyer

Chair store
Escape

Existing long section
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Broadway Theatre

lightwell

Council offices

Auditorium

Catford
Road
Chair store
Studio theatre
Dressing room

Existing cross section
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Council chambers

Access yard

Broadway Theatre

Fly tower

Wing

Wing

Stage

Dressing room
access

Catford
Broadway

Existing cross section through stage
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

1930 Press release for new town hall extension
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

1950 - Jubilee Dance
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

1955
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

2015
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

1970s - Proposed Pedestrianised Precinct
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Proposals
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Improving the studio
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

seating

Studio

stage

key constraints:

column positions causing restricted views
seating capacity could be increased

view restricted

adjoining gallery underused
control room poorly positioned

low seating
capacity given
studio size

Studio

view restricted

gallery
underused

Existing studio
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Studio

Cafe/bar

Gallery

Lower-ground floor

Ground floor

Improved arrival and connection
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

columns
relocated

central
control
room

fixed capacity
increased to 105

Studio

improved
entrance
to studio
gallery to act as
foyer for studio

Proposed studio
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

new truss to
support lighting
equipment

central
control
room
amphitheatre seating
with unrestricted views

Proposed studio
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Improving the main auditorium
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

get-in
complicated
lack of backstage
k
and
wings

key constraints:

get-in is remote from stage and includes complicated
changes in level
visibility obstructed in places - particularly front circle
behind control desk
lack of good disabled facilities
very little backstage and wing accommodation
little flexibility for performance type

poor seating
- issues with
obstructed views
and comfort

Working within the volume
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Seating
proposals

Stage/
back-stage
proposals

fly tower retained
for traditional
performance
control
room
improved seating with
unrestricted views

Main stalls access via
first floor foyer

stage brought into
auditorium - open
stage
disabled
seating at
front

foyer

area for
back stage

get-in
directly
from
Broadway
using lift

cloaks storage

Seating
proposals

Stage/
back-stage
proposals

Proposals for both stage and seating
are illustrated together for simplicity,
however one does not preclude the other
and each proposal could be delivered
independently

Proposed cross section
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

get-in directly
from Broadway

increased
backstage and
wings

Stage/
back-stage
proposals

stage brought into
auditorium - open
stage
disabled
seating at
front

Seating
proposals

Office

Box office

Auditorium
Office

improved seating with
unrestricted views

Cloakroom

lift
Cafe/bar

Bar

Foyer

Vestibule

Proposed ground floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Proposals for both stage and seating
are illustrated together for simplicity,
however one does not preclude the other
and each proposal could be delivered
independently

Catford Broadway

Auditorium

stalls capacity 340

Bar

Bar

Foyer

access to
circle

access to
circle

Proposed first floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium

circle
capacity 260

Control
room

access

WC

access

WC

Proposed second floor
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

sightlines
from balcony

sightlines
from stalls
stage

Existing seat widths and row depths insufficient
seat width increased to 550mm minimum
depth of stall rows increased from 800mm to 890mm
depth of circle rows increased from 710mm to 800mm

390
800

210
890

Greater audience comfort
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Wider building considerations
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Holbeach
Road
A

B

C

F

F

E

Rus
hey
Gre
en

7KRPDV/
DQH

D

C

F
G

C

D
H
N
I
C
L

J

K

M

ford

Cat

Rd

N

0m

100m

N

AAP extract
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

A new 2nd entrance....?
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

A new 2nd entrance....?
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Comparison with other venues
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 45%
Stage 15%
Wings/Backstage 40%

Old Vic Theatre, 1818
1,067 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 20%
Stage 15%
Wings/Backstage 65%

Royal Opera House, 1858
2,158 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 55%
Stage 20%
Wings/Backstage 25%

Royal Albert Hall, 1871
4,800-6,500 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 40%
Stage 15%
Wings/Backstage 45%

Hackney Empire, 1901
1,275 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 35%
Stage 20%
Wings/Backstage 45%

Piccadilly Theatre, 1928
1,144 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 70%
Stage 20%
Wings/Backstage 15%

Broadway Theatre, 1932
845 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 40%
Stage 20%
Wings/Backstage 40%

Royal Festival Hall, 1951
2,895 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 30%
Stage 20%
Wings/Backstage 50%

National Theatre,
Lyttelton Theatre, 1976
895 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 35%
Stage 25%
Wings/Backstage 40%

Barbican Centre, 1981
1,166 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 45%
Stage 45%
Wings/Backstage 10%

The Egg, Theatre Royal Bath,
2005
120 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Auditorium 30%
Stage 30%
Wings/Backstage 40%

Young Vic Theatre, 2006
550 capacity
Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

Given current provision, in comparison to
similar venues, wings and backstage are
roughly 25% short on capacity

Ian Chalk Architects : May 2015

Catford Broadway

____________________________________

Overview and Scrutiny
Mid-term review
Autumn 2016

____________________________________
Membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2014-16:
Councillor Alan Hall (Chair)

Councillor Liz Johnston-Franklin

Councillor Gareth Siddorn (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Alicia Kennedy

Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye

Councillor Roy Kennedy

Councillor Abdeslam Amrani

Councillor Helen Klier

Councillor Chris Barnham

Councillor Jim Mallory

Councillor Paul Bell

Councillor Sophie McGeevor

Councillor Peter Bernards

Councillor David Michael

Councillor Andre Bourne

Councillor Jamie Milne

Councillor David Britton

Councillor Hilary Moore

Councillor Bill Brown

Councillor Pauline Morrison

Councillor Suzannah Clarke

Councillor John Muldoon

Councillor John Coughlin

Councillor Olurotimi Ogunbadewa

Councillor Liam Curran

Councillor Crada Onuegbu

Councillor Brenda Dacres

Councillor Jacq Paschoud

Councillor Amanda De Ryk

Councillor John Paschoud

Councillor Colin Elliott

Councillor Pat Raven

Councillor Carl Handley

Councillor Joan Reid

Councillor Maja Hilton

Councillor Jonathan Slater

Councillor Simon Hooks

Councillor Luke Sorba

Councillor Sue Hordijenko

Councillor Eva Stamirowski

Councillor Ami Ibitson

Councillor Alan Till

Councillor Mark Ingleby

Councillor Paul Upex

Councillor Joyce Jacca

Councillor James-J Walsh

Councillor Stella Jeffrey

Councillor Susan Wise

Contents
1. Introduction ........................................................................................................ 2
2. Facts and figures ............................................................................................... 3
3. Pre-decision scrutiny and consultation ........................................................... 7
4. Holding decision makers to account ............................................................... 9
5. Performance monitoring ................................................................................. 11
6. Responding to emerging issues .................................................................... 14
7. Future challenges ............................................................................................ 19

Chair’s Introduction
“The well-being of the people comes first” - it says so in Latin on
Lewisham Council’s coat of arms and I have found that this is a vital guide
for scrutiny councillors when holding the delivery of public services to
account.
In these extremely difficult times of enforced austerity when central
Government is cutting off the funds to vital public services, we must resist
despair and cynicism and work to ensure that the resources that are
available are deployed to the maximum beneficial effect for our residents.
And so I am reassured, encouraged and given hope by the scrutiny work
put in by my fellow councillors - whose names you see listed on the
preceding page – to hold our Mayor, Cabinet, Council and other public
services to account.
Backed up by a wealth of local and professional knowledge and experience, they are always asking
the questions: Are we doing enough to provide affordable housing? Do we have the right plans for
transport? Are we getting the right deal on regeneration schemes? What are the effects on our
residents of cuts in health and social services spending?
We are keen to ensure that the professed intention of the Council to work closely with other public
services becomes a reality and it has been heartening to see how scrutiny in Lewisham has
matured over the past decade to enable us to conduct thorough examination of these other
services, especially in health.
Cooperation and pooling of resources with the other organisations that affect citizens’ daily lives is
increasingly important and enables the Council to ensure it is working as efficiently as possible. But
we must also be honest and frank and “Speak Truth to Power” that austerity isn’t working.
Earlier reports looking at the consequences of austerity policies on our emergency services,
combined with current scrutiny of reorganisation plans for the NHS have enabled us to produce
meaningful insights into how the Council and its growing public health responsibilities can dovetail
with the NHS to provide better services for Lewisham residents.
The watchwords as ever must be facts and evidence and we are building this knowledge base in
Lewisham’s scrutiny to both improve our services and demonstrate to central and London
government the needs and requirements of Lewisham and its residents.
I would like to thank all the scrutiny staff for their assiduous work in producing this and all the other
reports and also to take this opportunity to put on record my thanks to all Lewisham Council staff,
and all other staff working in the other public services for their commitment to making our borough a
better place to live, work, learn and enjoy life.
Together, we are all ambitious for Lewisham and we must continute to work closely with the
community and cooperate with our public and private sector partners to maximise the benefits for all
our residents, to make sure that the well-being of the people really does come first.
Councillor Alan Hall
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

1.

Introduction

1.1 This report summarises the activities and achievements of Overview and Scrutiny in
Lewisham at the mid-point of this administration. It also considers some of the
challenges faced and the work we have undertaken to meet those challenges.
1.2 The following principles, developed by the Centre for Public Scrutiny, underpin our
work.
Effective scrutiny:
 Provides a ‘critical friend’ challenge to executive policy-makers and decisionmakers
 Enables the voice and concerns of the public and its communities
 Is carried out by independent-minded governors who lead and own the scrutiny
process
 Drives improvement in public services.
1.3 Overview and Scrutiny oversees and reviews the implementation of Council policy.
We also use performance information to guide our work and hold decision makers to
account. Scrutiny councillors and officers have worked hard over the last two years to
ensure that these responsibilities have been met by:
 scrutinising decisions before they are made and before they are implemented
 holding the Mayor and other decision makers to account once decisions have been
made
 reviewing policies and their implementation as well as their impact on local people
 contributing to the development of policy by investigating issues of local concern
and making recommendations for change.
1.4 Overview and Scrutiny is committed to the Council’s overall strategic vision and we
seek to ensure that all of our work contributes to fulfilling the Council’s corporate
priorities and the objectives set out in Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy.
1.5 Over the course of the administration to date, six dedicated select committees have
been in place, each carrying out specialised scrutiny:







Children and Young People
Healthier Communities
Housing
Public Accounts
Safer Stronger Communities
Sustainable Development

1.6 We also established two time-limited working groups, for youth services and public
health, which carried out in-depth scrutiny on behalf of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

2

1.7 Our work in this administration follows on from our previous work. For example, the
Emergency Services Review examined the impact of the HM Government's austerity
programme on Ambulance, Fire, Police and NHS services in Lewisham.
Recommendations from this work were implemented in our current scrutiny
programme. For example, the full Overview and Scrutiny Committee heard from the
London Ambulance Service in July 2016 and were concerned about current
performance.
2.

Facts and figures

2.1

Scrutiny in Lewisham constructively challenges decision makers. It creates a
democratic space to investigate emerging issues and inform the development of
Council policy. So far in this term, this work has been delivered by:










45 councillors on Lewisham’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee
6 select committees
10 councillors on each committee
2 time limited working groups
2 business panels
2 joint health overview and scrutiny committees
37 select committee meetings in 2014/15
48 Select Committee meetings in 2015/16
More than 80 external guests and expert witnesses, who have given evidence or
contributed to scrutiny meetings
 16 in-depth reviews, 2 reports from working groups and 1 thematic review
 100+ referrals to Mayor and Cabinet
2.2 The current structure of Overview and Scrutiny in Lewisham:

3

2.3 The Business Panel coordinates and approves the work programmes of the select
committees to avoid duplication and to maximise efficiency. It also decides which
select committee should handle an issue where it might fall within the remit of more
than one committee. The Education Business Panel performs the same function for
education related issues.
2.4 Two select committees benefit from having members external to the Council. The
Children and Young People Select Committee has three parent governor
representatives within its membership1 and two diocesan representatives2, who have
full voting rights. The Healthier Communities Select Committee has a representative
from Lewisham Healthwatch within its membership, who is treated as a full member of
the Committee, although they do not have voting rights.
2.5 Scrutiny is committed to creating maximum impact for its work. Select committees use
evidence from a broad range of sources to challenge performance of Council services
and to drive improvement. Scrutiny committees regularly also choose important issues
for in-depth review. Through the in-depth review process, councillors have the
opportunity to hear from guest witnesses and experts alongside council officers and
representatives of other public services. Our process for developing and managing indepth review is set out below:

1
2

Elected in accordance with the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.
Appointed in accordance with Schedule A1 Local Government Act 2000, as amended.

4

2.6 The following in-depth reviews have been undertaken (or are pending completion) by
the select committees so far in this term:
2014-15
2015-16
Pending
Public Accounts
 No Recourse to
 Income
Select Committee
Public Funds
Generation
Children and
 Young People’s
 Information advice  Transition from
Young People
Mental Health
and guidance
primary to
Select Committee
secondary school
Sustainable
 High Streets
 The Catford
Development
Programme
 Modern Roads
Select Committee
Safer Stronger
 Poverty review
 Violence against
 Capacity of the
Communities
Women and Girls
community and
Select Committee
voluntary sector
 Demographics
Healthier
 Health and social
Communities
care integration
Select Committee
Housing Select
 Communal
 Housing and
Committee
Heating Systems
mental health
 Affordable Rents
Youth Service
 Youth service
Working Group
working group
report
Public Health
 Public Health
working group
working group
report
Public Spending in  Public Spending in Lewisham Working
Lewisham
Group
2.7 We have also been involved in joint working. In 2016, Lewisham and five other
London boroughs (Bexley, Bromley, Greenwich, Lambeth and Southwark) agreed to
set up a Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review and respond to
proposals from the Our Healthier South East London programme OHSEL. The
OHSEL programme is a five year commissioning strategy designed to improve health
services and reduce health inequalities in the six London boroughs represented on the
Committee. It is being led by the six Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) covering
the six boroughs. The Committee has met three times so far, and is due to meet again
in November 2016. It is currently reviewing the consultation on the elective
orthopaedics – to ensure the voice of scrutiny is represented in local decision making.
2.8 Lewisham is also working with partners to review the proposed changes to the South
London and Maudsley NHS foundation trust’s arrangements for provision of ‘places of
safety’. The joint committee has been scrutinising the proposals from the acute mental
health trust and their commissioners, to change the current service model of Place of
Safety provision within SLaM from four separate Places of Safety, for the boroughs of
Southwark, Lambeth, Lewisham and Croydon, to one centralised Place of Safety,
provided in Southwark for all four boroughs.

5

2.9 The joint committee has met twice in 2016 and it is due to meet again in the near
future to ensure that the proposals put forward by commissioners and providers lead
to the best possible service for residents. The Committee has been keen to ensure
that all relevant stakeholders have been consulted fully, and that the potential
implications for future ways of working are considered. The Committee believes that
the (often vulnerable) people who are taken to a place of safety are provided with the
services they need and, where appropriate, they are enabled to return home.
Some of the voices we have heard in this administration
2.10 Scrutiny plays a role in ensuring that a balanced range of views is heard. During the
period 2014-16, we have heard from many people and organisations, including:


Public Accounts Select Committee: IP&E Ltd, LB Brent



Healthier Communities Select Committee: Lewisham Clinical Commissioning
Group, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust, Lewisham and
Greenwich NHS Trust, St John’s Medical Centre, Healthwatch Bromley and
Lewisham



Children and Young People Select Committee: National Careers Services,
Prospects, London Councils, Youth Engagement Lewisham, Bonus Pastor School,
Pearson UK and International, Leathersellers Federation of Schools, the Young
Advisors



Sustainable Development Select Committee: Land Securities, Street Feast, TfL,
SEE3, Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA), Allies and Morrison
Urban Practitioners, the Lenox Project Community Interest Company/ Build, THCO
Ian Chalk on the Broadway Theatre



Safer, Stronger Communities Select Committee: Brandram Road Community
Centre, Lewisham Pensioners’ Forum, Honor Oak Community Association, Milton
Court TRA, Volunteer Centre Lewisham, Voluntary Action Lewisham, London Fire
Brigade, Intelligence Unit - Greater London Authority, Lewisham Disability
Coalition, National Probation Service



Housing Select Committee: Lewisham Homes, Rydon, Pinnacle, RB3, Shelter,
CAYSH (a South London charity delivering accommodation, advice and support services
for young people facing homelessness).

2.11 Scrutiny also benefits from the close involvement of officer from all levels of the
Council. The Executive Directors of each of the Council’s four directorate regularly
attend scrutiny meetings to account for the development or delivery of a Council policy
or programme. We have also invited the Chief Executive on a number of occasions to
share his overarching view of issues in the borough and the plans in place to deliver
on Lewisham’s priorities.

6

Following a request from Overview and Scrutiny
Business Panel, the public spending working group was
set up by full Council in June 2015 to investigate the way
in which other public sector organisations deploy their
expenditure across the borough in austere times. The
Committee made a series of recommendations to the
Council and partners organisations encouraging
openness, accountability and closer working.

3.

Pre-decision scrutiny and consultation

3.1 Scrutiny is closely involved in the pre-decision process. In addition to reports being
taken before select committees ahead of a decision being taken by Mayor and
Cabinet, there many are examples of Scrutiny engaging in issues at a formative stage:
proposals for the future of the main grants programme;
3.2 The Safer Stronger Select Committee’s long-term focus on the viability and capacity of
the sector means that it is well placed to strengthen the Council’s approach to working
with community and voluntary sector groups. Councillors are able to draw on their
experience of working in their communities with voluntary groups to challenge Council
decision-making and to highlight issues of importance in the sector. The sustained
reduction in government funding has been keenly felt in the voluntary sector. The
Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee uses its influence to ensure that the
impact of funding reductions is mitigated. The Committee is consulted about
substantive issues relating to the sector at the pre-consultation stage.
the implementation of the Lewisham Health and Social Care scrutiny protocol;
3.3 Lewisham’s health and social care scrutiny protocol is an agreement between partners
in Lewisham’s health care economy to deliver effective scrutiny, challenge and
consultation. Partners have agreed to give prior notice to Lewisham’s Healthier
Communities Select Committee about consultations – in advance of the statutory
requirements to provide information relating to substantial variations to health
services. The protocol also commits health partners to sharing their work programmes
as well as commenting on, and submitting ideas for, the Select Committee’s work
plan.
the Catford town centre redevelopment;
3.4 The Council has ambitious plans to regenerate the town centre of Catford. These
plans could deliver major improvements to Catford’s pedestrian and transport
infrastructure while creating opportunities for new homes, shops and other amenities.
In October 2015 the Sustainable Development Select Committee decided to carry out
an in-depth review of the regeneration programme.

7

3.5 The Committee received evidence from Council officers, officers from Transport for
London, and local stakeholders. The Committee seeks to add further value to the
ongoing process of decision-making and development in Catford by acting as a critical
friend and challenging the approach taken by decision makers. Sustainable
Development Select Committee will continue to engage with the local community,
stakeholders and Council officers to drive the programme forward.
transformation of youth services;
3.6 Scrutiny set up a working group to review the early proposals for the future of the
Lewisham’s youth services. This lead to the development of more detailed plans to
mutualise youth services in the borough. The Working Group felt that staff and young
people needed to be democratically represented in any mutual and that the potential
risks associated with the delivery of the mutual should be mapped out and
appropriately managed. The employee led mutual (Youth First) was established in
2016, with full consideration given to the comments and concerns of scrutiny.
changes to the street lighting policy;
3.7 The Sustainable Development Select Committee looked at the proposals for the
implementation of the new street lighting policy and recommended an approach to
officers, based on councillors’ local knowledge. The Committee’s recommendation
included proposals to carry out further trials to assure the Mayor that the necessary
considerations had been made before any decision was taken to change the policy.
monitoring housing pressures.
3.8 London’s well-documented housing crisis poses a significant challenge to councils as
they try to alleviate housing need and manage demand. In Lewisham, the Housing
Select Committee provided pre-decision scrutiny and ongoing challenge of the new
Housing Strategy at a formative stage. The strategy is a statutory document that sets
out the Council’s response to the needs of the borough’s growing population. It has
been developed against the backdrop of austerity, economic uncertainty and rising
costs of living.
3.9 Housing Select Committee has been involved in exploring creative solutions to the
housing crisis. For example, in March 2016 the Committee asked officers to look into
the possibility of extending existing charitable schemes that offer spare rooms for
refugees to offering rooms to homeless people in the UK. Members of the Committee
draw on their local expertise and links with the community to highlight the issues
facing vulnerable people in the borough.
3.10 The Committee makes regular recommendations to officers and decision makers, with
the intention of protecting those most at risk from poor housing. For example, when
the Committee considered the new Location Priority Policy and Temporary
Accommodation Procurement Strategy for the borough, it requested that further
consideration be given to the housing needs of families with children. The Committee
asked for an amendment to the policy that would explicitly stipulate that ‘officers would
endeavour to place families with children as close as possible to the borough.’

8

At the beginning of the 2014/15 municipal year the Safer
Stronger Communities Select Committee resolved to carry
out a review into violence against gang associated women
and girls. Members were concerned about reports in the
press, which detailed the dangerous and troubling situations
some women and girls encountered because of their
association with gangs. The Committee heard about the
secretive nature of this type of violence and the damage it
could cause in the lives of women and girls it affected.
Members challenged officers to improve the preventative
work taking place in schools. A package of support and
training is now provided to schools in the borough.

4.

Holding decision makers to account

4.1 Overview and Scrutiny has the authority to scrutinise Mayoral decisions before they
are implemented. Scrutiny can ask decision makers to reconsider their decision via
the process of ‘call-in’. This provides an opportunity to ensure that the Council
adheres to the principles of good decision-making.
4.2 Call-in (except for those call-ins which fall within the scope of the Education Business
Panel) are handled by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel which consists of
the chair and vice-chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the chair of each of
the select committees, and three councillors (or the next highest number necessary to
ensure that the panel’s membership reflects the overall political composition of the
Council).
4.3 On five occasions, the panels used the power of ‘call-in’ to ask the Mayor and cabinet
to reconsider decisions they had taken:


October 14 2014 Overview and Scrutiny Education Business Panel- called in
- Making of Instrument of Government – The Governor of Watergate School
The Governing Body of Watergate School sought to reconstitute itself. To do so, it
needed to make an Instrument of Government. It sought and obtained the
agreement of Mayor and Cabinet. However, the requisite consultation procedure
was not followed, rendering the decision void. The Instrument of Government was
later agreed, having correctly followed the procedure, in January 2015.



February 17 2015 Overview and Scrutiny Education Business Panel called in
- School Meals Procurement Contract
The Mayor had decided to award Compass Group Plc (Trading as Chartwells) the
new School Meals Contract for a period of five years with the option to extend for a
period of up to two years from 1 May 2015, subject to sufficient schools buying into
the service thus ensuring the contract’s viability. It was subsequently discovered
that an accounting error had been made within the bid scoring of the second

9

placed bidder for the School Meals Procurement Contract, and the decision was
called in. Officers issued a confidential correction sheet and advised that the effect
would not have altered the outcome. The Mayor and Cabinet upheld the original
decision.
While the outcome was unchanged, the call-in ensured that the decision was
procedurally correct and robust to withstand potential challenge, and served as a
learning point for future decision-making.


25 May 2015 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel – Allocation of Main
Grants Programme 2015-2018
Business Panel had concerns about the lack of information and clarity of the
funding already granted to EqualiTeam Lewisham, and requested a report outlining
how the organisation would be operating in future and addressing wider issues
relating to comprehensive equalities objectives. Business Panel asked the Mayor
and Cabinet (Contracts) to reconsider their decision to continue to fund this
organisation. Business Panel also recommended that the Safer Stronger
Communities Select Committee look into the issue of insufficient applications for
grants from organisations in the south of the Borough.



16 June 2015 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel - Ladywell Pop Up
Village Contract
The decision to award the contract to SIG Building Systems Ltd for the
construction of a demountable and redeployable building on the site of the former
Ladywell Leisure Centre was called in because of errors in the scoring tables in the
original report. Mayor and Cabinet Contracts revisited the decision but decided to
uphold their original decision having looked at the corrected scoring and upon the
advice of officers that the amendments would have had a negligible impact on the
recommendations.



2 Feb 2016 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel – Management
Arrangement Shared Communications Service
The decision of the Mayor on 13 January to appoint an interim joint head of
communications with Lambeth Council on a fixed-term contract and to instruct
officers to investigate further a fully shared communications service with Lambeth
Council was called in.
Business Panel had specific concerns about the implementation of the Mayor’s
decision, and believed that the Mayor’s original decision was taken without full
legal implications being provided to him. It also felt that advice on the practical
implications of proceeding to appoint an interim joint Head of Communications was
inadequate, as it did not consider crucial aspects such as potential conflict of
interest between the two boroughs. It requested that consultation with nonexecutive Councillors took place before any changes to the Communication
Service were progressed.

10

The Mayor considered the call in, received further advice from his Cabinet and the
Head of law, and upheld his original decision.
In January 2015, Lewisham’s scrutiny team was
invited to give evidence about best practice in predecision budget scrutiny to a scrutiny challenge
panel at another London authority. The evidence
provided was well received. It led the panel to
recommend strategic changes to their council-wide
approach to pre-decision scrutiny and challenge,
modelled on the Lewisham approach.

5.

Performance monitoring

5.1 Scrutiny regularly uses performance information and data to examine the
effectiveness of services. Performance monitoring work is led by the Public Accounts
Select Committee, with other committees using data and performance information to
inform their work. Some examples from 2014-16 have included:












Complaints and casework numbers and levels of escalation
London Fire brigade and London Ambulance Service attendance times
Safer Lewisham Plan priorities and the data used for target setting
Attendance at local assembly meetings
Library and information service visits and numbers of loans
School attendance and exclusions
Delivery of the new homes programme
Implementation of the discretionary licensing scheme
Public Health spending and delivery of initiatives
Figures for take up of adult learning places
Leisure centre contract management - including usage figures and key
performance indicators
 Health and Wellbeing priorities and the health and wellbeing strategy dashboard
 Workforce profile including data on starters, leavers, internal moves and promotions
at the Council

11

Councillor Alan Hall with officers from the London Ambulance Service, July 2016

5.2 Committees have also considered a range of standing items. These include topics
which span more than a single year, or where a regular review of data and
implementation is required. This has included:









Processes for implementing improvements to the public realm
Children’s Social Care workforce strategy
Oversight of the school places strategy
NHS providers’ quality accounts
The Council’s medium term financial strategy and financial forecasts
The Lewisham Future Programme
GCSE and A-Level results
Implementation of the Council’s asset management system

5.3 The Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee has responsibility for scrutinising
the implementation and delivery of the Safer Lewisham Plan. The Committee receives
regular updates on the Safer Lewisham Partners’ performance in delivering the plan.
As part of its sustained focus on key crime and disorder issues, the Committee
regularly invites representatives of the Metropolitan Police Service to account for its
work in the borough. Councillors use their knowledge of local issues to act as a ‘critical
friend’ to service providers.
5.4 Scrutiny also regularly reviews the Council’s employee profile and frequent staff
surveys. The Committee ensures that the Council continues to meet its ambitions to
be a progressive employer, which is adaptable enough to respond the needs of local
communities and reflective of Lewisham’s diverse community. Most recently, the
Committee pushed for the publication of an action plan, which would address key
concerns from staff reported in an employee survey. The Committee will monitor the
implementation of the plan and review future updates in order to assess the impact of
management intervention.

12

Lewisham provides support to the Chair of the London
Scrutiny Nework. The aim of the network is to encourage
best practice and enable the sharing of best practice and
ideas amongst scrutiny bodies in London. This role
ensures that Lewisham is at the forefront of
developments in London scrutiny and that Leiwhsam
Members and officers benefit from peer-to-peer learning
and support.

Scrutiny of the budget process
5.5 Public Accounts Select Committee leads the scrutiny of the Council’s savings
programme and budget process. The Lewisham Future Programme is the Council’s
approach to meeting the challenges of reduced funding, whilst maintaining high quality
public services. There have been sustained reductions in funding from government
over the years of this administration, which are on top of significant reductions made
since 2010. Officers are working on a range of thematic cross-cutting programmes in
order to meet the challenges posed by the reductions in funding and scrutiny is closely
involved in examining the potential impacts of these proposals.
5.6 The Councils medium term financial strategy (July 2016) forecast a further reduction in
funding of a minimum of £15m (6%) between 2016/17 and 2019/20. At the same time
spending projections, including pay and prices inflation and provision for budget
pressures related to an increasing population and changing demographic needs,
estimate that minimum additional spending of £30m (13%) will be required to meet
those needs. The Council estimates the level of savings required for the three-year
period 2017/18 to 2019/20 at £62m. Of this £17m of savings were agreed in the
2016/17 budget. The Council’s budget model therefore estimates the remaining
savings requirement over the next three years to 2019/20 at £45m.
5.7 In addition to the medium term financial strategy, Public Accounts Select Committee
receives a quarterly budget monitoring report, which highlights areas of over- or
under-spend, as well as any areas of concern that may need additional scrutiny. In
times of austerity, it is imperative that the Council has a clear overview of how and
where funds are being spent.
5.8 New savings proposals are scrutinised each Autumn each year as part of the ongoing
Lewisham Future Programme approach. Business Panel considers crosscutting
proposals in the wider financial context of the organisation. Select committees and
Business Panel then make a referrals and/ or comments to Public Accounts
Committee, which considers all savings proposals in the context of its regular budget
and performance monitoring scrutiny. Senior officers attend to answer questions and
the Public Accounts Committee makes referrals on all savings proposals to Mayor and
Cabinet. Savings proposals that require public consultation are usually brought back
to future meetings of the relevant select committee/Business Panel for further scrutiny.
Committees might decide to focus discussions at future meetings on savings
proposals in order to assess their impact or to understand how the lessons from
implementation in one area of Council service might be applied to another.

13

Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 13 July 2015

6.

Responding to emerging issues

6.1 Increasingly, in the context of reducing resources in the public sector, Scrutiny has to
be responsive to emerging issues, some examples from 2014-16 include:
Public spending in Lewisham;
6.2 The work of other public sector organisations, alongside that of the Council, is critical
to the wellbeing of local people. The Council often works in partnership with these
organisations to achieve the best possible outcomes for those who live, work and
learn in the borough. Particularly in times of austerity, scrutiny recognises that it is
critical that the Council understands how resources are deployed by other public
organisations in Lewisham.
6.3 A Public Spending Working Group was established to explore how public sector
organisations in the borough were responding to the challenges of austerity. The
Group took evidence from:






The London Ambulance Service
London Fire Brigade
Metropolitan Police Service
Goldsmiths
Lewisham Southwark College

14

6.4 The working group requested detailed information about organisations’ capital and
revenue expenditure in the preceding years as well as budgeted spend for future
years. Those organisations not invited to attend a meeting of the working group or
Overview and Scrutiny Committee were also asked to comment on:




The implications of the figures
Their spending plans for the future, especially given any further savings, which
they might be expected to make.
Any areas of collaboration or interdependencies with Lewisham Council services
(and in particular on any plans in the next three years to stop/change service
arrangements in these areas) so that any direct impact on the Council arising
from reductions in spending can be assessed.

6.5 The working group concluded its review and agreed its recommendations in
September 2015. At its meeting in January 2016, the committee received a response
to its recommendations from Lewisham’s Mayor and Cabinet. The response
highlighted the significance of the Council’s relationship with public sector partners in
the Borough and it reiterated the Council’s commitment to continued collaboration.
6.6 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee continues to monitor the performance and
spending plans of partners. In July 2016 officers from the London Ambulance Service
were invited to discuss their improvement plans and the work being carried out to
meet attendance times in the borough.
6.7 The Committee has also retained its focus on devolution. It received updates from the
Executive Director of Community Services at its meeting in July, it also heard from the
Chief Executive at the meeting in October 2016 to hear about the Council’s approach
to devolution.
changes to public health;
6.8 Healthier Communities Select Committee retains its focus and challenge on emerging
issues in health and public health. The Committee takes an evidence-based view of
new initiatives and regularly invites partners to share developments and new projects.
The Committee also reviews proposals for savings in the public health budget.
6.9 A time limited Public Health Working group was established to review early Lewisham
Future Programme savings to Public Health budgets. The proposals put forward by
officers were cross-cutting and significant, and it was agreed by Council that the
working group should look at them in more depth. The group examined the proposals
in detail and the impact that they might have on service improvement; health
protection; and health improvement. It put forward recommendations for mitigating
actions and it emphasised the importance of continued close scrutiny and challenge.
key housing issues – the implications of the housing and planning bill;
6.9 Lewisham's scrutiny goes outside the Council, for example as the Housing and
Planning bill was going through Parliament, Cllr Alan Hall gave evidence - along with
officers and members of the GLA, Lord Kerslake (Chair of Peabody), Jim Ripley (Chief
Executive of Phoenix Community Housing) and a Housing Association Tenant

15

Representative from the London Tenants Federation - to the GLA Housing Committee
on the possible consequences of this legislation and the effect of the 'Right to Buy'
scheme.

Councillor Alan Hall giving evidence to a meeting of the GLA’s Housing Committee on 16th July 2015 on the
impact of the Government’s housing bill including ‘Right to Buy’.

6.10 The Act altered the way in which the government funds the provision of affordable
housing. It also changed some of the rules that govern the rights and responsibilities
of housing association tenants. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has kept the
passing of the Act under review and the Housing Select Committee ensures that
officers continue to develop policy with local considerations and the potential future
implications of the Act in mind. Members have committed to carrying out scrutiny of all
of the policy changes and new protocols that will follow from the new legislation. It was
a recommendation of the Public Spending Working Group that the Council’s Housing
Strategy be reviewed to ensure that all proposed legislative, financial and regional
policy changes are fully reflected.
school improvement and intervention in struggling schools;
6.11 The success of Lewisham’s primary schools is not reflected in the Borough’s
secondary schools and members have stressed the urgent need to improve
secondary school performance.
6.12 The Children and Young People Select Committee has maintained its focus on school
performance. This included looking at Sedgehill School following an intervention by
the Council. A report on the struggling school was considered in February 2015 at the
request of members. It summarised details of the history of the intervention as well as
the Council’s communication strategy. The Committee ensured that relevant
stakeholders including the Head teacher and Chair of Governors were invited to
speak, as were representatives from the body of parents and students. Concerns
16

about the consultation process were of concern to Members and a referral was made
to Mayor and Cabinet. The Mayor agreed the Committee’s recommendation that a
strong communication strategy, endorsed by all parties, should be in place for the
future.

As a result of the severe financial pressures faced by Local
Government, the Public Accounts Select Committee
decided to carry out an in-depth review into Income
Generation. The Committee wanted to consider ways of
maximising income generation to help protect the services
to residents in the borough. The review led to a
comprehensive package of changes in the development of
initiatives and Council policy.

Housing and mental health;
6.13 Research has found that people with mental health conditions are more likely to live in
low quality housing, and that a lack of suitable housing-related support can lead to an
escalation in care needs. At the same time, mental health problems can often go
undiagnosed for a long time. In social housing communities, it can be frontline housing
officers who are the first to notice mental health problems, and many housing
providers provide support services for people with particular mental health needs.
Research by the NHS confederation found that closer working between housing
providers and mental health organisations can help to better target support to those
most in need. To improve housing services for residents with mental health problems,
some areas have established joint working agreements with local housing and mental
health organisations, for example, Islington Council’s Housing and Mental Health Joint
Working Protocol. The Chartered Institute of Housing also encourages landlords to
offer mental health training to housing officers – and there have been reports of social
housing landlords training frontline staff, including maintenance teams, to identify
tenants at risk of suicide. The Housing Select Committee has resolved to explore this
issue in more depth.
Transition from children’s’ to adults’ social care;
6.14 Scrutiny has pushed for improvements to the transfer from children’s to adult’s social
care. The Healthier Communities and Children and Young People Select Committees
both reviewed issues around transition between services, in response to complaints.
As a result, the Council is working on additional provision and has improved
coordination between the service areas.

17

In July 2014, the Public Accounts Select Committee
decided to carry out an in-depth review into the
increasing number of cases of people with no recourse
to public funds (NRPF) and their impact on Lewisham
Council as both a financial and a service pressure for the
organisation. The review supported Council policy and
ensured that the Committee remained engaged in this
important area of work.

Ofsted;
6.15 In October and November 2015, Ofsted carried out an inspection of services for
children in need of help and protection, looked after children and care leavers, and
reviewed the effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Children Board. Inspectors
looked at the following areas and rated them as follows:
 Children who need help and protection – Requires Improvement
 Children looked after and achieving permanence – Good
 Leadership, management and governance – Requires Improvement
6.16 This has resulted in greater demand on the Scrutiny function to strengthen its
arrangements and provide tougher challenge of child safeguarding services. The
findings of the Ofsted report have helped to shape the development of the Select
Committee’s annual work programme. In addition, the Committee is working to ensure
that it rigorously prioritises items on its programme in order to provide sufficient
challenge of policy development and decision making. The Committee is also
committed to further developing its relationships with partners and other stakeholders
to drive improvements to services for young people.
Health and social care;
6.17 A key challenge for scrutiny is the task of driving improvement in services in a climate
of ever-diminishing service budgets. For example, efficiency savings within the NHS
and changes in social care funding have the potential to displace pressures within the
health and social care system. With this in mind, the Healthier Communities Select
Committee organised a one-topic committee meeting at the end of 2015 on the state
of the local health economy, in order to allow partners to demonstrate how their work
was improving interaction between providers and commissioners. A primary concern
for members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee is to gain a more
thorough understanding of budget pressures across the health sector. Members want
to understand how cuts in one area interact with another and potentially impact on
patient care.
6.18 In 2016 the Committee embarked on an in-depth review of Lewisham’s health and
social care integration programme. The review is focused on the Adult Integrated Care
Programme, its structure, priorities and measure of success. The Committee is also

18

keen to understand how the Programme is working with the voluntary sector and how
the public are being engaged.
Following the reported experiences of residents at the
Parkside Housing Estate, the Housing Select
Committee undertook a review of communal heating
systems. The newly regenerated estate had had, in
accordance with Greater London Authority (GLA)
guidance, a communal heating system installed.
Residents were of the opinion that this had been poorly
delivered, as there were a number of ongoing
problems. The review led to a package of changes in the
development of Council policy.

7.

Future challenges

7.1 Challenges facing public services in the years to 2018 are substantial. The sustained
pressure on all parts of the public sector are not likely to ease as the population of
Lewisham, and London, continues to increase whilst available resources continue to
reduce.
Scrutiny of public sector partners
7.2 Following from its cross cutting ‘emergency services review (2013)’ the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee has retained its focus on the
performance of Lewisham’s public sector partners. The
Committee receives regular updates from the London
Ambulance Service on attendance times, recruitment
and performance. Scrutiny has also reviewed London
Fire Brigade efforts to manage their reducing resources
whilst working to sustain high quality services.
Members have used a range of data sources and called
on key officers to answer important questions about
variations in performance.
7.3 Scrutiny in Lewisham has also looked at future
infrastructure requirements locally. Overview and
Scrutiny Committee’s review of the Centre for London’s
work on ‘turning south London orange’ led it to
recommend that the Council develop a strategic
position on major infrastructure projects in the borough.
Scrutiny urged decision makers to work proactively to
consider how best to define Lewisham’s transport
priorities. In addition, we have now made the Public
Transport Liaison Committee a formal council body
Cllr Adefiranye and Cllr Hall with
Keely Smith (Borough Fire Commander)

19

thus recognising its importance and adding it to the other public services being held to
account by our scrutiny. In London, public transport is key to regeneration and the
daily lives of residents. The Chair of the new committee is the Chair of our Sustainable
Development Committee.
Health and social care policy, devolution and integration
7.4 The Committee continues to take account of the local impact of national policy
priorities and changes. It regularly reviews the approach the Council and its partners
are taking in relation to:




Better Care Fund
Sustainability and Transformation Plans
Our Healthier South East London strategy (OHSEL)

7.5 Members of scrutiny work to stay informed about developments as they progress. The
Committee’s pending review will serve as a foundation for future work. The Committee
will also scrutinise Lewisham’s health devolution pilot, which is being set up to
establish whether greater local freedoms could help further integration.
7.6 Partnership working has also become a more significant for health scrutiny. Along with
the London boroughs of Lambeth, Southwark, Bromley, Bexley and Greenwich,
Lewisham has set up a joint overview and scrutiny committee to oversee the delivery
of the ‘Our Healthier South East London’ strategy. Other significant items coming up
include a follow-up on the in-depth review that looked at transition from children's to
adult social care, implementation of the Care Act, and access to GP services.
Affordable housing
7.7 The Sustainable development and housing Select Committee are involved in the
ongoing scrutiny of two housing zones in Lewisham. The housing zones in Catford
and New Bermondsey have been designated by the Greater London Authority as
areas for development and the provision of affordable housing. The two committees’
combined efforts work to ensure that affordable housing is a priority consideration in
regeneration projects and in Council policy. Housing Select Committee’s previous
work on access to affordable housing and low cost home ownership provide the basis
from which the Committee can propose new approaches to difficult issues.
Education
7.8 The Children and Young People Select Committee has committed to retaining its
focus on the key areas of children’s social care. It will also scrutinise the
implementation of the recommendations from the education commission, which was
set up to drive improvements in Lewisham’s schools. The long term under
underperformance of Lewisham’s secondary schools is a significant concern to the
Committee. It will continue to challenge to the Council to improve its plans.

20

Providing support for scrutiny in Lewisham
7.9 The Council is working to streamline its processes in order to digitise, encourage selfservice and reduce levels of duplication. The push towards new ways of working are
necessitated by reductions in resources but they are motivated by the intention to
maintain quality delivery of services. In this context, teams within the Council also
have to develop ways to increase the effectiveness and impact of their work. The
scrutiny team is committed to producing a consistently high standard of work, whilst
assuring the scrutiny process and meeting all legislative requirements.
7.10 In times of change and uncertainty, the need for focus and challenge through scrutiny
is greater than ever. Scrutiny committees continue to set ambitious work programmes
with the intention of ensuring the best possible outcomes for the people of Lewisham.
The support for scrutiny in Lewisham is guided by the intent to ensure that the
challenge and focus provided by scrutiny has a continued positive impact.
Working efficiently and effectively
7.11 A prioritisation process (see below) for agreeing the importance of items that are
added to work programmes and for assessing their priority, which is used to guide the
committee, in discussion with the Committee’s scrutiny manager. The charts are used
as part of the following key scrutiny reports:




Work Programme setting report (considered at the start of municipal year) –
work programme process chart
Work Programme report (considered at every meeting) – prioritisation chart
Scoping report (considered at the start of an in-depth review) – in-depth review
process chart.

7.12 The prioritisation chart (below) is used when deciding on new items for Scrutiny to
consider. Where capacity is tight, committees are required to spend time
understanding the context and working to develop a coordinated approach to
delivering their workloads. This is where evaluation is important. An issue may be high
priority for the Council, but if scrutiny’s impact is likely to be low then Committees
might decide to defer or delete the item from their work programme in order to focus
on more pressing issues.
7.13 The Scrutiny function has always been quick to take up new technology, being early
adopters of SharePoint and ModernGov (online committee management software).

21

22

COUNCIL
Report Title

Appointments

Key Decision

No

Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

1.

Date: November 23 2016

Appointments by the Council
Nominations to fill a vacancy and change the membership of a
Committee have been received from the Labour Group.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Council agrees:
(1) Councillor Joyce Jacca replaces Councillor Sue Hordijenko on the
Audit Panel.
(2) Councillor Sophie McGeevor be appointed to the vacancy on
Planning Committee B.

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 1 in the name of Councillor Daby to be seconded by Councillor
Moore
Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

“The council notes that International Day for the Elimination of Violence against Women
and White Ribbon day is on 25th November, marking the 16 days of activism to end
gender-based violence. The days aims raise awareness around gender based violence
and mobilise all communities to unite under the goal of ending violence against women
and girls.
This council recognised that White Ribbon Campaign aim to:
•
•
•
•

Mobilise men to campaign against violence against women and girls (VAWG)
Campaign and raise awareness to address social attitudes and behaviour and alter
social norms that lead to violent behaviour against women
Increasing awareness on the issue and campaign to ensure services are available
to support victims and survivors of abuse
Mobilise the entire local community under the goal of ending violence against
women and girls.

This council further notes that:
•
•
•
•

1 in 4 women in England and Wales will experience domestic violence in their
lifetimes and 8% will suffer domestic violence in any given year.
1 in 5 women will experience some form of sexual violence, and in 2015 5,000
rapes were record in London, 229 in Lewisham.
135 women and girl are affected by FGM across England and Wales
Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) is both a form of discrimination and a
violation of human rights.

This Council and its members pledge to never commit, condone or remain silent about the
violence against women and girls.”

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\9\4\ai00015497\$l35sup11.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 2 in the name of Councillor Kennedy to be seconded by
Councillor Till
Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

“Lewisham Borough Council recognises and values local pharmacies as a vital primary
care health service and as an integral part of the fabric of local communities.
Council notes that;
•

Pharmacies offer a range of services such as dispensing prescriptions, disposal of
unwanted medicines and supporting self-care.

•

Pharmacies play an important role in promoting wellbeing such as healthy eating,
smoking cessation, exercise, flu vaccination, sexual health and more.

•

Advice and support services are also available to care homes.

•

Several local pharmacies are working towards and some have achieved Healthy
Living Pharmacies (HLP) status recognising and evidencing their role in improving
the health of the local population.

The council is greatly concerned about Government imposed threats to pharmacies as a
result of cuts in the budget of £170m nationally to take effect from October 2016. This is a
6% cut in cash terms but could effectively mean a cut of 12% during the financial year
which could potentially close up to a quarter of pharmacies with an increased focus on
warehousing dispensary and online services. Service cuts in pharmacies put more
residents at risk as well as putting pressure on GPs and on hospital services and therefore
increasing NHS costs. A fully funded community pharmacy service is cost effective and is
in the interest of patients and carers.
The council agrees to write to the Secretary of State for Health, NHS England and the
Clinical Commissioning Group detailing our concerns and demanding an immediate
reversal of these proposals.”

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\4\ai00015498\$vpfcuffa.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 3 in the name of Councillor De Ryk to be seconded by
Councillor Dacres
Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

“Every year approximately 3,500 babies in the UK are stillborn, one in every 200 babies.
Another 2,000 babies die within the first four weeks of their lives, during the neonatal
period.
Baby Loss Awareness week (9-15th October) has been running for 13 years and is an
opportunity for bereaved parents, and their families and friends, to unite and
commemorate their babies’ lives; to raise awareness about the issues surrounding
pregnancy and baby loss in the UK and to let the public and key stakeholders know what
the baby charities are doing to reduce the number of families affected.
Pregnancy and baby loss potentially affects one in five families in the UK and this Council
calls upon our Chief Executive to draw up an action plan to show how local NHS and
public health services can maximise and improve prenatal and bereavement services for
Lewisham families.”

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\4\ai00015499\$yecs05ch.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 4 in the name of Councillor Hall to be seconded by Councillor
Muldoon
Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

"The Council welcomes the publication of South East London's Sustainability and
Transformation Plan (STP). The Council also notes:
•
•

That there is a significant shortage of funds in the NHS and social care system
That respected think tank The Kings Fund has publicly expressed its numerous
concerns over the STP process including:

o “Tight deadlines have made it difficult to secure meaningful involvement in the plans
from key stakeholders, including patients and the public, local authorities, clinicians and
other frontline staff.”
o “Despite the focus on local ownership, key elements of the process have been ‘topdown’.”
o “National requirements and deadlines for the plans have changed over time, and
guidance for STP leaders has sometimes been inconsistent and often arrived late.”
Therefore, the Council resolves to:
•
•
•
•
•

Request full publication of all associated documents and appendices
Request pre decision scrutiny on changes to NHS and social care provision locally
Require full public consultation on significant changes to any service
Call on HM Government to provide the resources to fund good quality services
across South East London
Reaffirm its commitment to an Accident and Emergency Department on the
Lewisham Hospital site”

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\0\0\5\ai00015500\$5lbfj22f.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 5 in the name of Councillor Kennedy to be seconded by
Councillor Hall
Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

“This Council notes that tax evasion and avoidance are having a damaging impact on the
world’s poorest countries, to such a level that it is costing them far more than they receive
in aid. It is also costing the UK as much as £30 billion a year and this practice also has a
negative effect on small and medium-sized companies who pay more tax proportionately
This Council further notes:
the UK Government has taken steps to tackle the issue of tax avoidance and
evasion by issuing Procurement Policy Note 03/14, which applies to all central
government contracts worth more than £5m
the availability of independent means of verifying tax compliance, such as the Fair
Tax Mark
In early 2015 new regulations required public bodies, including councils, to ask
procurement qualification questions of all companies for tenders over £173,000 for service
contracts and £4m for works contracts. However, these questions are not as detailed as
the PPN 03/14.
This Council recognises:
That, under the Council's current procurement policy, all suppliers bidding for
contracts above £173,000 with the London Borough of Lewisham are required to selfcertify their tax compliance status in line with central government practice, using the
standards in PPN 03/14.
That any supplier that has any occasion of non-compliance with last 5 years is
excluded from the Council's procurement procedure, unless it has since fulfilled its
obligation.
On 20th July 2016 the Council resolved to:
Work to incorporate co-operative values and principles when planning services and
in its engagement with local residents.
Publicise existing co-operative good practice within the council and across the
London Borough of Lewisham.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\1\0\5\ai00015501\$rrn11ymq.doc

Audit our contractors and suppliers on how many meet the Fair Tax Mark
standards, pay the Living Wage and meet appropriate standards on apprenticeships.
This Council therefore resolves to promote its current procurement policy and encourage
partner organisations to undertake similar approach. This Council asks the Cabinet to
report on the promotion of its policy and on progress to obtain the Fair Tax Mark to Full
Council on an annual basis for the next five years.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\1\0\5\ai00015501\$rrn11ymq.doc

COUNCIL
Report Title
Key Decision

Motion 6 in the name of Councillor Upex to be seconded by Councillor
Barnham
Item No.

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: November 23 2016

Govia Thameslink Railway (GTR) has launched an extensive consultation which sets out
proposed changes to the timetable which will be operated by GTR in 2018 following
completion of the Thameslink Programme.
Accordingly, the Council welcomes the imminent introduction of new rolling stock, with
greater capacity. We also strongly welcome proposals in the current Thameslink timetable
consultation to introduce four trains an hour Monday to Saturday, from 2018.
These proposals include:
a)
Diverting all our East Croydon services to West Croydon - making it take longer to
get to Gatwick and other destinations in Sussex.
b)
Reducing our peak services to London Bridge to four trains an hour (the same
capacity as the rest of the day). These services would be replaced by five carriage
Overground trains to Dalston Junction.
This Council notes the Consultation taken place with regards to proposed changes to the
timetable affecting residents who use the following stations - Sydenham, Forest Hill,
Honor Oak, Brockley from 2018
This Council also supports the efforts of the 'Cinderella Line' campaign and Vicky Foxcroft
MP to promote improvements to the unacceptably poor service on trains serving Crofton
Park, Catford, Bellingham and stations beyond.
But the proposed improvements, while welcome, do not go far enough. We therefore call
on Thameslink also to ensure:
o
That trains into central London do not terminate at Blackfriars – they should
continue through to Kentish Town/St Pancras, because Blackfriars is difficult as an
interchange.
o
four trains an hour also on Sundays, when demand can be as high as on other
days
o
trains are timed evenly at 15–minute intervals, instead of 10 or 20 minutes, so that
people have greater certainty about when the next train is due.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\0\5\ai00015502\$r2rczehl.doc

o
Coordination with London overground services at Denmark Hill and Peckham
This Council call upon the Mayor of Lewisham to write to Southern on behalf of all
Councillors and all passengers who use these services calling for the direct Service to
East Croydon from these stations to be maintained and not cut. Whilst welcoming any
proposed increase in Overground trains to Canada Water we have concerns with
regards to safety at a this already overcrowded station, furthermore we call upon the
Mayor oppose any cut in peak hour services to London Bridge. This council calls on this
matter to be referred to the Public Transport Liaison Committee and its finding to be
reported back to full council.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\0\5\ai00015502\$r2rczehl.doc

